Gardnerville Town Board Meeting

July 2, 2019

4:30 p.m.




/\?\ GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD 1407 Highway 395 N.
Tow n Gardnerville, Nevada 89410

. (p)775-782-7134 (f): 775-782-7135
Ga dneerlle Meetmg Agenda https://www.townofgardnerville.com

List 1879 }\ ev 1(:1(-1 Lmd? Slater, _Chawman Contact; Carol Louthan, Administrative
¢ Lloyd Higuera, Vice Chairman Services Manager for any questions or
Ken Miller, Board Member additional information. You may also view
Mary Wenner, Board Member the board packet online at the town’s website.

Mike Henningsen, Board Member

Tuesday, July 2, 2019 4:30 p.m. Gardnerville Town Hall

MISSION STATEMENT

“The Town of Gardnerville provides high quality services based on community needs in a cost effective and efficient manner. We will strive to profect
the community’s quality of life while proactively preparing for the future. We will be accessible and fully accountable to our community.” -

Copies of the finalized agenda were posted on June 27, 2019 or before the third day prior to the meeting date, by Marie Nicholson,

L s . €
Office Specialist Signed: )f} 1 )'Z{iﬁ/ -/_'5',/51)) ~ in accordance with NRS Chapter 241 at following locations;
Carson Valley Chamber of Commerce, 1477 Hwy 395 N, Gardnerville NV 89410 at s N é A.M.
Douglas County Historic Courthouse, 1616 8" Street, Minden NV 89423, at ‘,7 59 AM.
Gardnerville Post Office, 1267 US Hwy 395 #L, Gardnerville NV 89410 at 7 ?{;5 "AM.
Gardnerville Town Offices, 1407 Hwy 395 N, Gardnervile NV 89410 at X /S  AM. and on the Internet at
https://www .townofgardnerville.com/

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or accommodations at
the meeting are requested to notify the Gardnerville Town Offices in writing at 1407 Highway 395, Gardnerville NV 89410, or by calling
(775) 782-7134 at least 24 hours in advance.

Notice regarding NRS 237: The Gardnerville Town Board has adopted a Standard Policy No. 7, which contains a motion regarding
Business Impact Statements (BIS). When the Town Board approves its agenda, it also approves a motion which includes ratification of
staff action taken pursuant to NRS 237-030 et seq. with respect to items on the agenda, and determines that each Rule which is on the
agenda for which a BIS has been prepared does impose a direct and significant economic burden on a business or directly restricts the
formation, operation or expansion of a business, and each Rule which is on the agenda for which a BIS has not been prepared does
not impose a direct and significant economic impact on a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a
business.

Notice: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; the Gardnerville Town Board may combine two or more agenda items for
consideration; and the Gardnerville Town Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the
agenda at any time. All items shall include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue.

Notice: : “Any invocation offered before the official start of the Board meeting shall be a voluntary offering of a private
citizen. Attendance and participation in any invocation is not required. The views expressed are not necessarily views of
the Board, have not been previously reviewed or approved, and shall not impact the business of the Board.”

INVOCATION — Deacon William Henderson, St Gall Catholic Church

4:30 P.M. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mary Wenner

PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS (No Action)

This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic not on the agenda and must be limited to 3
minutes. The Gardnerville Town Board is prohibited by law from taking immediate action on issues raised by the public
that are not listed on the agenda.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA, with public comment prior to Board action.
The Gardnerville Town Board reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most
efficient manner.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:
A. June 4, 2019 Regular Board meeting

https://www.townofgardnerville.com/ July 2, 2019




Gardne vﬂ}ﬁ

_th- ﬁ evads GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA — CONT’D

CONSENT CALENDAR FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that may be adopted with one motion after public comment. Town
Board Members or any member of the general public wishing to discuss any Consent item or items may request to have
the item or items moved to the Administrative Agenda for further discussion. When items are moved for discussion, they
will be placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda.

1. For Possible Action: Correspondence,

2. For Possible Action: Health and Sanitation & Public Works Departments Monthly Report of activities.
3. For Possible Action: Approve June 2019 claims.

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
(Any agenda items pulled from the Consent Calendar will be heard at this point)

4. For Possible Action: Discussion on and direction to Staff to work with Douglas County regarding the
2019 Master Plan as it pertains to the Minden/Gardnerville Community Plan and the proposed revisions of
the Master Plan mapping and future processes for the update; with public comment prior to Board action.

5. For Possible Action: Discussion and direction related to the proposed goals for Erik Nilssen, Town
Manager, for completion during his first year as the executive director of the Town; with public comment
prior to Board action.

6. Not for Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report of activities for June 2019.

7. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Manager’s Monthly Report of activities for June 2019.

8. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Board members activities and liaison committee reports

including but not limited to; Carson Valley Arts Council, Nevada League of Cities, and Main Street
Gardnerville.

2" PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS period (No action will be taken)

Adjourn

Freedom 5K Fun Run/Pops in the Park Concert — July 4, 2019

Movies in the Park - July 12, 2019 — Incredibles 2

Third Thursday Wine Walk — July 18, 2019

Movies in the Park — July 26, 2019 — How to Train Your Dragon — The Hidden World
Next monthly board meeting August 6, 2019

Movies in the Park — August 9 — Mary Poppins

“
=== ————————————————— e
https://www.townofgardnerville.com,/ Page 2 July 2,2019



A’\ GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD 1407 Highway 395 N.
Town . a Gardnerville, Nevada 89410

(p)775-782-7134 (f): 775-782-7135

f h : .
GA fdnerville Meetmg Minutes https://www.townofgardnerville.com

Linda Slater, Chairman

LSt 1870 oy Contact: Carol Louthan, Administrative
cvada Lloyd Higuera, Vice Chairman Services Manager for any questions or
C g ¥ q
Ken Miller, Board Member additional information. You may also view
Mary Wenner, Board Mem ber the board packet online al the town’s website.
Mike Henningsen, Board Member
Tuesday, June 4, 2019 4:30 p.m. Gardnerville Town Hall

INVOCATION — None.

4:30 P.M. Chairman Slater called the meeting to order and made the determination a quorum is present. Chairman
Slater recognized Board Member Wenner is absent tonight.

PRESENT:
Linda Slater, Chairman Jennifer Yturbide, Town Counsel
Lloyd Higuera, Vice-Chairman Erik Nilssen, P.E., Town Manager
Ken Miller Geoff LaCost, Superintendent Public Works
Mike Henningsen Carol Louthan, Administrative Services Manager
ABSENT:
Mary Wenner

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Ken Miller

PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS (No Action)
This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic not on the agenda and must be limited to 3 minutes.
The Gardnerville Town Board is prohibited by law from taking immediate action on issues raised by the public that are not
listed on the agenda.

Mr. Ken Miller commented on behalf of town board and myself. My wife and | took a walk by Heritage Park and
saw the completed bocce ball courts, an Eagle Scout Project the Town Board approved recently. If you haven't seen it
please go by and look at it. They did a nice job. You need to take your own equipment and the rules are on a board next
to the courts. There are benches and tables around the courts so you can watch the game.

Mr. Jerry Turner commented on items not on the agenda (a recording is available upon request).

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA, with public comment prior to Board action.
The Gardnerville Town Board reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most efficient
manner.

Mr. Miller pointed out staff has requested that Item 5 be taken off consent and moved to the administrative calendar.

Chairman Slater has also been informed that item 16 under the administrative agenda will be removed and
rescheduled for the July meeting.

Motion Higuera/Miller to approve the agenda with item 5 on the consent calendar for discussion and item
16 on the administrative agenda removed.

No public comment.
Upon call for the vote, motion carried with Board Member Wenner absent.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF THE PREVIOUS MINUTES

a. April 29, 2019, Special Meeting Minutes
b. May 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting; with public comment prior to Board action.




Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
June 4, 2019 — 4:30 p.m.
Page 2

Motion Henningsen/Higuera to approve the previous minutes of April 29, 2019 special meeting and the minutes
of May 7, 2019 regular board meeting.

No public comment

Upon call for the vote, motion carried with Board Member Wenner absent.

g CONSENT CALENDAR FOR POSSIBLE ACTION :

{tems appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that may be adopted with one motaon after public comment. Consent
items may be pulled at the request of Town Board members wishing to have an.itemor items discussed further. When
items are pulled for discussion, they will be automatically placed at the beginning 'of the Administrative Agenda.

1. For Possible Action: Correspendence,
Read and noted.

2. For Possible Action: Health and Sanitation & Public Works Departments Monthly Report of activities.
Approved. e s

3. For Possible Action: Approve May 2019 claims
Approved,

4. For Possible Action: Approve expenditure of $2,479.50 for Boy Scout Nathan Caires Bocce Ball Courts at
Heritage Park. g i T

Approved. i BB

5. For Possible Action: Approve budget transfers for 18!19 FY :

Pulled for discussion,

6. For Possibie Action: Approve a letter of support at the request of Douglas County to the United States
Department of Transportation for a BUILD Grant to ald in the constructlon of Muller Parkway
Approved.

7. For Possibie Action: Recommend Approval of a Douglas County Outdoor Festival Entertainment Event
application for Big Mama’s Show & Shine & The Great Race, to be held on June 23, 2019 from 11:00 a.m.
to 6:00 p.m. at Lampe Park """ R :

Recommend approval

Motion ngueralhmller to approve the consent calendar

No public comment i

Upon caII for the vote motlon__ carrled wrth Board Member Wenner absent.

ADMINISTRAT[VE AGENDA
(Any aqenda Jtems pulled from the Consent Calendar will be heard at this point)

Motion ngueralMlller to approve budget transfers for 2018/2019 fiscal year from $85,000 to $135,000.
Motion carried with Board Member Wenner absent.

g Not for Possible Action; Presentation by Wes Henderson, Director, Nevada League of Cities, on a
legislative update.

Mr. Wes Henderson thanked the board for their membership and participation in the Nevada League of Cities. Mr.
Henderson reviewed some of the events of this year’s legislative session. The main things that affect you are all the
reforms made in 2015 to collective bargaining, prevailing wage and ending fund balance have been rolled back.
Effective July 1 any public works project of $100,000 or more is subject to prevailing wage. The Evergreen clause




Gardnerville Town Board Mesting
June 4,2019-4:30 pm.
Page 3

and collective bargaining agreement are back in play. There is also a revision of an ending fund balance that required
three months retention, that was not subject to collective bargaining, that has been rofled back to two months. The
League is authorized to put in up to 6 BDR's per session. We submitted four. The public records bill, we worked on
until it was more acceptable. A public records violation has to be a willful violation of the law to incur fines. Main
Street was reauthorized for another two years,

Mr. Miller asked if there were any changes to the open meeting laws.

Mr. Henderson noted there were a couple of open meeting law bills. There were some changes to worker's
compensation that could have an effect on municipalities. :

E For Possible Action: Discussion and possible renewal of the. Town :of Gardnerville’s insurance
offered through the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and payment of $25,173.92 for fiscal
year 2019-2020 with public comment prior to Board action. Appearance by, Alan Reed, Warren Reed
Insurance :

Mr. Alan Reed, Wairen Reed Insurance, went over the insur_a__nce renewal for fiscal year 20_1 9/2020.

Mr. Miller asked about the competition for grants.

Mr. Reed mentioned last year the POOL has focused on heiping entltles that don't have money. i Woufd give ita
try. We've seen everybody get grants.

No public comment.

Motion Higuera/Miller to approve the Town_ of Gardnerwile Insurance and payment of $25,173.92. Motion
carried with Board Member Wenner absent. S o

E For Possible Action: Discussion to recommend approval approval with modifications, or denial of a
proposed Speciai Use. Permlt and major design variance for the construction of a parking area for the J.T.
Basque Restaurant and’ Iandscape barrier to include the property north of the restaurant at 1430 N.
Highway 395, APN 1320-33-401-034. The existing Midland Station would be demolished and parking
would be the prlmary use of the parcel with publlc comment prior to Board action.

10.

Mr. Keith Ruben, R. O Anderson Engmeermg, representtng the Lekumberrys, gave a power point presentation on
the prOJect . Draai

JB.& Mane Lekumberry stated the gas tanks have been death certificated and removed. They are second
generatlon owners of the JT Basque Bar & Dining Room. Over the last 59 years they have worked hard to preserve
and enhance the building that was moved. from Virginia City in 1896 We need to expand the parking capacity.

Mr Henningsen remarked the JT is near and dear to my heart. [ don’t see a lot of vision being portrayed on
anything but a parking lot. So I'm-disappointed. Businesses need to help revitalize and set an example. | didn't see
a lot of vision other than a parkmg Iot

Mr. Lekumberry needs parkmg We tried numerous ways to get another viable business and that building is
ditapidated. s

Mr. Higuera felt the'board will wrestle with the Plan for Prosperity.

Mr. Nilssen, town manager, went over the staff report.

Public comment.

Ms. Carol Sandmeier thanked the Record Courier for putting the item in the paper. It's tragic to lose another of

Gardnerville’s historic buildings. | appeal fo the owners to recognize its historic value. If demolished it leaves another
major gap. [t was a sad day when we losf the East Fork Hotel. If this continues we'll be known as the parking lot




Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
June 4, 2019 — 4:30 p.m.
Page 4

town on the way to historic Minden. | consulted with someone who teaches heritage conservation. Using the term
adaptive reuse, it was suggested the fagade of the building could be saved. The cars could enter the parking area
through the open bay of the garage. This would preserve the appearance and provide a new parking area for the
restaurant, but the facade would be there. | appeal to the owners, the town and the county to choose fo do the right
thing.

Ms. Beth Hojnacke was thinking the same thing. Is there some way to save it and have the cars enter and leave
through the bay doors. Sharkey's has parking. 1n 50 years | don't want someone coming to Gardnerville and saying
“They paved paradise and put in a parking lot.”

Barbara Havens commented the Lekumberrys are a wonderful family and hai'/é:'a"”wonderful business. I'd like to
see them have the opportunity to expand. But | think these ladies have some. reaIEy good ideas. | hope you will
consider that in your deliberations. :

Meredith Fischer recognized the town is in a tough position. | have a lot of respe'ct}for the Lekumberry family and
what they contribute te the downtown area. They are an anchor business. [ respectfully disagree with tearing down
the building. Certainly | would love to see it as an adaptive reuse. 1 also understand their perspective of the costs
being prohibitive. | love the idea of keeping the fagade and having parking behind that. | also sit.on the board of
directors for Main Street Gardnerville and preservation is one of the key factors. Unfortunately parklng lots are not
memorable. Historic buildings have value. | ask if we aren’t able to save it, consider preservation for the remaining
historic buildings we have. We're seeing a lot of casualty of historic buildings in the name of progress.” The Minden
Flour Mill is an example of adaptive reuse. We need to consider if there are any areas we can work to provide more
grants so these aren’t high costs for people who might take this on, .- This is'something Main Street can look at too.

Mr. Miller served four years on the Main 'Street_';qrogram and | be'liefv.e__in the fundamentals and purpose of Main
Street. In the past we have had eye sores in thls area.: lf |t were to 3|t vacant it would be and eye sore again. JTisa

received grants for it. This particular property could not be obtamed for the pnce we got that property and the
improvements. If another busmess were to goin there 1t could rea[ly cause ‘a worse problem of parking than we have
now.

Chairman Slater agreed There would be a huge cost to try to retain it as it is. They are not in the business to
make things look pretty for us. :

Mr. Higuera noted Marn Street Gardnervr]le s goal.js to draw people to the downtown area. | can't think of another
business that.draws more people than the JT. They really fit into the Main Street goal. | think there are really more
pluses than mlnuses l too would back the plans of the Lekumberrys.

N[r Henningsen thought this was. extreme[y difficult. The burden of preservation falls on the few. We many want
to enjoy the benefits, but can't contribute;to preserving it. | would love for them to step up and help us. | understand
why-it's.not their job to preserve Gardnerville:- The other side is, is it our job to send the message that we need to try
and work to preserve the town and the historic character. Part of me says we do heed to send that message. But |
understand lt’s expensave The plannlng commission denied it. | am frustrated that it's too easy to make a parking lot.

Motlon MitlerInguera to approve the proposed special use permit and major design variance for the
construction of-a parking area for the JT Basque Restaurant and landscape barrier to include the property
north of the restaurant at 1430 North Highway 395, APN 1320-33-401-034 and the existing Midland station
would be demolished and parking would be the principal use of the parcel. Motion carried with Board
Member Wenner absent.

E For Possible Actfion: Discussion fo recommend approval, approval with modifications, or denial of a
proposed Maverik convenience store with fuel sales on approximately 3.1 acres of an 8.65 acre parcel,
APN 1220-04-602-012, 1301 Highway 395; with public comment prior to Board action.

11.

Mr. Rick Magness, Maverik Incorporated, gave a power point presentation.




Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
June 4, 2019 - 4:30 p.m.
Page 5

Mr. Nilssen advised the colors of the building have changed. The original colors were darker. | do not have any
conditions. They met the design criteria of the Plan for Prosperity. They meet the town’s design guidelines. The
parcel is completely zoned neighborhood commercial. If Maverik develops their store and parcels off the rest of the
five acres, it’s still zoned neighborhood commercial. | don't know how that could be developed as rasidential without a
master plan and zoning map amendment. That is something that needs to be clarified.

Mr. Sam Bocth, Planning Manager for Douglas County, agreed the site is zoned neighborhood commaercial. It
would take a master plan amendment and zoning map amendment to do anything other than commercial on the back
portion of the site. | cannot guarantee it would be residential behind. It's all one paroei 80 it would take a parcel map
to split the property. :

Mr. Bill Marsh lives back up against this parcel. | would like to know wh_el_’_ejthe_ foading docks are going to be. We
will hear the noise from the loading docks. : :

Mr. Nilssen explained there are delivery trucks, but there is no Ioadi'né-"dock.

Mr. Steve Mason, County Planner, explained they have to have a 12 X 40 foot Ioadinére_tee__to the rear of the
building. As far as neighboring residences, from the brick wall it is at least 4 to 500 feet to the nearest residential
building. The use of the parcel is hypothetical. This is only for the Maverik store and the three-acre section.

Mr. Bob Simon lives on Elges. There are approximately 10 convenience store gas stations in Gardnerville and
Minden. There are three within one-quarter mile of this project.” How many do we need? This station will increase
traffic and congestion in and out of 395 and Stodick Parkway. 395/Waterloo is the busiest intersection in the Carson
Valley. If this station is open 24/7 it will create light pollution. My neighbors and | ask that the board deny this
application. This Maverik Company could care less about Gardnerville.: it's about money.

Mr. Greg Santucci fives on Elges. | do have concerns about this affecting the city water. Elges is a cul-de-sac.
There should be some kind of entry or exit to the complex or whatever is going in behind.

Mr. Roger Falcke is a business owner here in Gardnerville. | own the AM/PM in Gardnerville. Maverik has a
good model for a convenience store. If you approve it this will be the eighth gas station on Main Street in
Gardnerville. Is there an aven ue for Maverlk to contnbute to the future stoplight and intersection at Stodick Parkway?

Ms. Barbara Havens on Elges agrees w1th these gent!emen We don't need another gas station. | would
challenge the gentleman from the planning ‘department to know what is going on with the rest of the property. We
need to look at what will happen to the rest of: the property and the noise for that area.

Chalrman Slater asked what would have to happen to open Flges?
Mr Nalssen stated Eiges can't be extended to Stodick. [t was closed specifically because the spacing between
Elges-and 395 is too close and also in antlc:tpatlon of Muller Parkway and Stodick Drive. Whatever goes in the rear

woutd be using the two exlstlng dnveways

Mr. S|mon commented if the rest of the property is developed there will be an access from Elges.

Mr. Ndssen d;dnt believe there would be an access to the rear. That would come to the town for review and we
could comment at that time.

No further Gomments. 5

Mr. Miller felt this is not the best use of the property. It is zoned commercial and we cannot forbid a gas station.
It's hard for us to deny this application because of the zoning.

Mr. Henningsen believed this is a very professional project. 1 don't think we need another convenienca store or
gas station. We have to look at the project, its merits and how well it meets the county standards.




Gardnervilie Town Board Meeting
June 4, 2019 - 4:30 p.m.
Page 6

Mr. Higuera agrees it is a well-planned project. We are only considering the gas station and the convenience
store.

Chairman Slater concurs with that.
Motion Henningsen/Higuera to approve the proposed Maverick convenience store with fuel sales on

approximately 3.1 acres of the 8.65 acre parcel APN 1220-04-602-012 on 1301 Highway 395. Motion carried
with Board Member Wenner absent.

E For Possible Action: Discussion on vehicle gate style and placement'te"be instatled at Carrick
Detention Pond on Town property; with public comment prior to Board actlon

12.

Mr. LaCost has been in contact with Mr. Jones. He is disappointed that the gate is not going to be put out by
Grant. | did provide some information that the access is not an exclusive use. The gate was removed from the fence
project because it didn’'t seem to fit in with the project. Red curbing and no parking were directed to be put in and will
be put in when we have staff ime. | did receive additional quotes for the gate if we want to put the gate in. When
whoever owns the property develops the property they will have to remove the gate. Any moneys we put in for a gate
would be lost for lack of better terminology. Do we still want to move forward with the gate? We, jUSt need to know
direction. SRR SR

Mr. Higuera would like to start with the red paint and sigh's"{"_-__g-__

Mr. Miller mentioned the issue about the adjacent parcel beEnQ:a 'ded"b'ark was settled two years ago.

Mr. Nilssen would recommend to the board palnt:ng the south curb red and putting up no parking signs. | would
like to leave the north side open so if people come to use the dog park they would be able to park. If it still is an issue
where he can’t access his property in the future,i'we_ can paint the,_north side as'__weii.

Attorney Yturbide advised if you are giving direeti'oﬂ you_____c_id:n"t reaily'_ need a motion.

No public comment. 75
Mr. Miller felt staff has direction. No need for a motion -
B For Possible Action: Discussion to award, awar& with modifications or deny Town bid #2019-01, for

a fencing contract around Grant/Carrick Detentlon Pond to Tholl Fence in the amount of $32,453.72; with
publlc'comment prlor to Board action. :

13.

M_r; il__."aCost expialned-'_the bid Cam_e in under budget. We had two bids. Tholl Fence came in as a low bidder. |
did ask in the recommended motion for-an allowance of up to 7% for change orders. The fence goes all the way
around the walking path. The.plan set is'in board packet. It is a four-foot high black chain link fence, manual gates,
two entrances for vehicles that will be kept locked.

Mr. Miller wondered about the Girl Scout project for a water fountain. We said we would [ook at the fencing to see
if there was any money left. We just spent money for a bocce ball court for the Boy Scouts. Can we put it on the
agenda next month that we spend the leftover money from the fencing to approve the water fountain and invite the
Girl Scouts back? :

Mr. LaCost mentioned the fiscal year changes. That money would be in next fiscal year's budget. In the small
projects line item | did set aside some funds foer community projects. We can bring it back next month.

No public comment.

Motion Higuera/Miller to award Town bid #2019-01 for a fencing contract around Grant/Carrick Detention
Pond to Tholl Fence in the amount of $32,453.72. Motion carried with Board Member Wenner absent.




Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
June 4, 2019 — 430 p.m.
Page 7

2 For Possible Action: Approval of Resolution 2019R-026 augmenting the Town of Gardnerville
budget for fiscal year 2018-2019; with public comment prior to Board action.

14.

Mr. Nilssen went over the reimbursements to be augmented.
No public comment.

Motion Miller/Higuera to approve Resolution 2019R-026 augmenting the Town of Gardnerville budget for
the fiscal year 2018/2019. Motion carried with Board Member Wenner absent.

.. For Possible Action: Discussion to award, award with modifications or reject Town bid #1901, for
the 2019 Annual Street Sealing contract to the best bid and/or Iowes 'responswe and responsible bidder;
with public comment prior to Board action. R -

15.

Mr. LaCost had 175,000 budgeted. We are looking to add 10% for change orders."' :'I'f'you look at the plan set it
does quite a bit of old town. We are not doing Cemetery. That is on the slate to be replaced: .Another option would
be to do the town maintenance facility and/cr seal this parking Eot The alternate is the Sunset Park subdivision.

Mr. Higuera asked if in the motion they would prefer to have the dollar amount versus best bldder Eowest bidder,
responsive hidder, responsible bidder. : 8

Aftorney Yiurbide advised it needs to be a dollar amount.

Public comment,

Ms. Beth Hojnacke serves on the board of dlrectors for. Chichester POA We have a cul-de-sac that all the
asphalt is coming Eoose Iifthere is some extra mopey maybe you could just do: that end where the repair is. If we

No further public comment.:-

Motion ngueralMil'l'éE'to award Town bid #1901 for the 2019 Annual Street Sealing contract in the amount
of $142,007.00 to Sierra Nevada Constructlon and mclu_de a 10% overrun, if needed. Motion carried with
Board Member Wenner absent :

E For.Possible Actlon Discussmn regardmg possmle elimination of convenience fees associated
with:the payment. of the Town s Health & Sanitation bills by credit card; with public comment prior to
Board action. ' T

16.

. Removed and placed:' :e'r"iiduly agend_a_._

E Not for Possible Actlon Dlscusswn on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report of activities for May
2019,

17.

Attorney Yturbide reported some issues came up involving Carrick Pond and researching the easement. There
were some employee and HR issues that came up. There was also some discussion with a variety of people
regarding credit card convenience fees which we are talking about next month. We were going to readdress it in July.
| have also reviewed the agenda for June and packet materials, attended meetings and corresponded with staff. |
reviewed a couple of code enforcement issues and professional services contract.

18. E Not For Pessible Action: Discussion on the Town Manager's Monthly Report of activities for May 2019.

Mr. Nilssen reported the flower baskets are hanging on Main Street. We were able to review two projects and
award two contracts. There have been a Iot of meetings with consulting engineers and regulatory agencies to figure
out where we are with certain projects. We entered a design contract for the Maple Street storm drain relocation. We
shoutd have plans on that in the next five or six weeks.




Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
June 4, 2019 — 4:30 p.m.
Page 8

19. X Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Board members activities and liaison committee reports

including but not limited to; Carson Valley Arts Council, Nevada League of Cities, and Main Street
Gardnerville.

Chairman Slater stated Mary Wenner is not here tonight to give the report on the arts council. Wes Henderson
gave the report for Nevada League of Cities.

Mr. Higuera reported another new member (Don Johnson) has been added to the Main Street Board of Directors.
They are up to a nine member board. All flower pots have been sold. They stiil have 20 flower baskets to sell. They
reformed their executive committee. They invited town board members to the chamber coffee on June 12. Main
Street is the business of the month and is hosting the chamber coffee at the Gardnerville Station. The wine walk was
down substantially. The weather played a big role in that. They made $2,022.00 as opposed to $4,961 last year.
They are hoping for better weather next wine walk. The Fun Run is still scheduled Carson ValEey Pops will still be at
the park.

E For Possible Action: Discussion to change the date of the July board meet;ng from the 2@ to the 9'";
with public comment prior to Board action.

20.

Mr. Nilssen was just giving the board the option if they 'Wie_h_e_d to chan_g_e_ffh:e meeting.

Na public comment.

No action taken. Meeting remains on July'fZZ'?.d.:.:..

2" PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS perlcd (No actlon Wi" be taken)

Mr. Jerry Turner gave pubhc comment on items. not on the agenda (a recordlng is available upon reguest)

Meeting adjourned at 7 16 p m.

Respectfully Sul_;_m_;t_ted,

Linda Slatelf,f:-(_:_haii_"m'ah__-_' : Erik Nilssen, P.E., Town Manager




Gardnerville Town Board m

Gardnerville
AGENDA ACTION SHEET AISDEnILE

1. For Possible Action: Correspondence

2. Recommended Motion: Receive and file
Funds Available: ”_ Yes “ N/A

3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Marie Nicholson, Office Specialist
4. Meeting Date: July 2, 2019
5. Agenda: ¥ Consent C Administrative
6. Background Information: See attached.
7. Other Agency Review of Action: I Douglas County ¥ N/A

8. Board Action:

[ Approved C Approved with Modifications
" Denied [ Continued

M
e —————  — 4 — — — / / / / /J/ m4m4m/ m/4/4/4/m /] /] 78 m m4 m m m 4 m/ /7

Agenda Item #1



June 14, 2019

Town of Gardnerville

Town Manager, Erik Nilssen, P.E.,
Town Board Members

1407 Highway 395 N
Gardnerville, NV 89410

Re: Superintendent of Public Works - Geoffrey LaCost
Dear Board Members and Town of Gardnerville Manager,

I am writing this letter to let you know about an incident that occurred on Saturday, June
15t during an estate sale that we were holding at 1357 Toler Lane. This was an incident that was
handled very poorly and I really feel that it needs to be addressed.

We started on Saturday morning at 7:30am. As is done through-out the entire valley, we
went to put out signs out - not knowing that this area had strict rules about not putting them on
signs. That was my error in not checking first, but honestly I didn’t even think about it since that
is a normal thing that is done through the whole county on any given weekend.

Around 8:00am, we started having customers come to the estate sale (3 different people in
fact) all saying the same thing: “There is an angry man ripping yours signs down. He’s in a huff
and sweating, yelling that these are his posts and that we are going to be fined $800 for putting
them up.” My husband drove down but didn't find him, only shards of our signs - some still stuck
to the posts and some in the street.

Alittle bit later, Geoffrey LaCost showed up at the house. This part is only relayed to me
from my daughter and the witnesses at our estate sale. He came onto the property, with all of our
signs ripped to pieces {not in half as he said later - but I wish I'd taken pictures} and came up to
my daughter. He did not ask to speak to whoever was in charge, but instead just started speaking
abruptly to my daughter - whom was only outside to tell people that there was more inside and
out back. This was her grandmother’s house and it was a very difficult day to begin with. To have
some angry man come up to her and tell her that she was breaking the law and will have to put
new signs up while putting the shreds of our first round in her hands was just more than she
needed to deal with. (Someone needs to remind Mr. LaCost that “Estate Sale” means someone
has died so maybe having a bit more respect would be a better way to start.}

Someone at the sale came in and told me he was out there, but had left abruptly before I
could catch him. My neighbor that was there to help out — and had been the one with my daughter
to put the signs up, immediately called him. He was nice enough to leave a card. This neighbor is a
Jocal attorney. The conversation that they had was also not polite {on his part) and was downright
rude. She had to end the conversation, as it was going nowhere.

At that point, with our sale going, she had to go back to the store to buy more boards while
I tried to acquire enough boxes to put them up. Then we had to remake them and make the

-2




rounds to put them up - all while we (I) was having to deal with the customers by myself, It
definitely made an already difficult morning even more difficult.

Being angry at the behavior of this town representative, I posted a message on my
Facebook page and later on the Rants & Raves pages. This behavior was out of line and downright
unprofessional. The responses that I got - both in the comments on those pages and from private
messages - were even more disturbing. On my page, I posted a picture of his card, but on the
Rants and Raves page [ didn’t. It was amazing to me to see how many people knew exactly who I
was talking about because this behavior seems to be a pretty normal behavior.

Through the day my neighbor had been curious enough and did some further research and
found that Mr. Lacost has listed in his Linked In account that he is responsible for Customer
Satisfaction and Dispute Resolution. That is simply laughable based on how he dealt with this
situation on this particular morning.

Mr. Lacost has some serious anger issues, based on the reports from our customers. He
most certainly doesn’t have a grasp on how to deal with community members in a professional
manner, nor was he successful in resolving this dispute in a professional manner.

It wasn't until the middle of the next day that he showed back up. Undoubtedly, it was
because he was getting feedback about the Facebook posts. I whole-heartedly doubt he would
have returned otherwise. Upon his return this time, he started out by asking for the lady in charge
- again obviously he knows it was a lady since I'd been the one to postit.

Our conversation that day was very cordial, but it was not very productive. He stated his
reasoning - these posts cost a lot of money and the tape would peel the paint off. Igetitand
apologized. He said, the day before, that he rips up the signs now because he would just have
people turn around and put them back up. At that point, I took offense. IHe cannot just lump all
people into the same mold. I agree, there are most definitely people that would do that, but if he is
responsible for building community relationships you cannot start off by lumping us all into the
“dirt bag” category.

I told him (three times in fact - because he refused to acknowledge it) that had he shown
up at the house yesterday morning with this same demeanor, asking to speak to the person in
charge and politely asking that we take them down and offering the suggestion of putting them on
boxes, we would have been more than happy to do that. We honestly did not know it was such a
horrible offense - but I understand now. (I will be sure to relay this fact to the new owners too.)

Had we been given the opportunity to take care of this on our own, we certainly wouldn't
have ripped them off the posts, leaving shards all around. We would also have been able to reuse
those signs easily and not have to go out and spend more money on more signs - and have people
that were there to help out having to waste more time. -

He was proud of the fact that he had come back the next day to straighten things out after
having some time for everyone to calm down. Again, I relayed to him that it was him that was
initially angry yesterday and [ only became angry upon hearing how he spoke to and treated my




daughter, and how he ripped up our signs, causing more of a hassle at the start of our morning.
Had he come to us this civilly the day before there would have been no anger (maybe some
frustration, but we are reasonable people and would have done as he asked), there wouldn't have
been any Facebook post, and more importantly, there wouldn’t have been a crying daughter from
his behavior with her. He repeatedly stated that he did not raise his voice to her. That's all great,
but just because he didn’t raise his voice that doesn’t mean that he was behaving respectfully and
not talking down to her like she was scum. She would not come out when he showed up the next
day for him to apologize because she did not even want to see him again. Instead, she stood in the
garage and listened to him justify his behavior and not really acknowledge what we were saying.

I appreciated and thanked him for returning but in the end I feel that if he is being deemed
as a community representative in charge of dispute resolution that he needs to be made to spend
some time in training classes/meetings to help improve the manner in which he deals with the
general public. He could also possibly use some anger management training. At any rate, until
these things happen, [ would not recommend that he have that responsibility as part of his job
description. He is obviously too overloaded to deal with the daily (or at least weekly) dilemmas of
dealing with signage issues.

Another suggestion to minimize this issue would be to have some small plagues made and
attached to each of these posts letting people know that taping signs to the posts is prohibited.
After this situation, [ went to the Town of Gardnerville's website to see if there was anything to be
found about signage and found nothing. Granted, [ didn’t search the whole website, but did more
than the average person would be willing to do.

In the end, we went around and picked up all of the scraps that he’d left in the street and
attached to the posts where he tore them down. That is who we are and what we would have
done had the signs been left for the time of the sate.

I appreciate your time in reading this and sincerely hope that this prompts some changes to
be made in how things are handled in the future.

Sincerely,

Teresa Rose

1073 Canal Dr.
Gardnerville, NV 89410
(775)450-6734




Videos v of 2 Yoy Tube |

on_che 1)
42\"40? ﬂ—lff y_La +fosgjiHa¢[5M’

dng uLmdﬁp ellons. Ezya_g.feimp.ﬁ =
_Q)hyﬂlm:{it} uLa;{(c[__awc» HLMA_. o
Sprayin wll _doedmentan T
xk&bm £_°£§7 Deﬂg_,smi, -
Scilentisis LJLJI fﬁéfﬁ_”.@ qbowt’.
CACI‘J /—rmff ______
_uJIa'H' tn . the Uorfa{anc_;%_gygw.m
Speaging. Loll_documentary |
“H Feo Sucw;\/c- Chevt -‘fﬂcs‘
J_‘_K_@Jq._g____, w_____m._.w__'m; L _}
_C Juw,\l«m'[s Hasv p_ﬁw,_ﬁﬁ&
J::Zpr-é’G{DAmm ﬂxxf{L& !‘-7‘// 3
l)or‘)c_o_znﬁb a)(lM Elont
Freos S
_154#1';3115_;&&@, Ner |

Vc‘«J;f'oS o O'Fz- \/sq‘--f'u-ke-_i

Fr&m cﬁlcqwmlf ]EQ ﬁreaq[omf

JF: fe.. T A%@arﬁ.ﬁﬁj_@—, .
,5 a,{:(lt:frc_ Elb!e Y. !

v_}— y;om,.CA e™ +"' arls ilgwﬁj;é.sss’ﬂ Z fr..

et 2l
___(Ze:u Chemﬁ:g__{s ares q‘_géﬁwj
l}&:{,gvcu‘io foé- ﬁt‘f‘ﬁe _J
_(‘beuq/j M{«Sfﬂfﬁtlia*gw/(jﬁ S
::GQWE#‘I PR il _f;:_éftimﬂ =

f[%/ c:/j'ﬁ_,; -Che ﬂ[_g_w

S Mery ellens ¢ ;C;oo;gd Lot .
g QQ,_/_\_@ M‘J¢« Lo ) 3 ,i,gﬁjﬂﬁw,
He_ Lan} __ﬁﬁ), #ag Cﬁeoﬁlfaés‘
K‘ﬁjﬂxg £m¢e/‘ [_é‘,dic‘( "Wﬂ tg :
j/éﬂ; F’“ *'ra/ W_W_D‘-,ﬁfh

i
L
3
et it

oLy -

"“’7‘7 I—

‘§

TSN SR - |

videos 1y of 2z Yeutubes
Ers
\Qszﬂmon Co#‘b""lfl;bm }farce.

NPT S

'r‘!!]urc.- w th Do th_@_ PH.SH
gl”""’éwf' A/)’ u_ 1 Is”’

DCSHbML / IL)’ ng :ni {5 . ’
ﬂc.s-fr,a,/m%hbﬁ#{fo C,_, é@gg_w_ﬂ ]

M

TA‘" Jma:mm Sc:[laoé éaé -‘.‘
Johan /é;aiéméwﬂsdnk_@wl“m_‘zmi |

..._P&L i e et o i

ulw JJ.W C’ mf,,,ﬁmf ép. |
MBL“Sam 418 Mmmﬁ%J S

A”"’H’”“l'

M e e

514«{mf4&i1mézm P it i
Michelle Maflin? . cijo -]
Book:SNEA. the Froar zt,-m

in c_o’ac—sfroﬁ )
Rkl
TL»&«D e,[ub efefLDEL‘“ﬂ_jdeM

_mc_ Amam Lq,ﬁui_ COV”"?ML_C?VCJ

L
V'G[C“’ S ‘Yo\q '\Lq-‘:‘—-fj

f:/:.rf_
5_1!10&&__3 /’1 a_ﬁ/ 7
%de!ﬁ(ﬁoﬂw p__éﬁg; éo[f

J) fi@,[ﬁ/umdm/r/a’ &___ /

LG gt

,JLAL._t«z C e Daty: @m%mé

_ﬁw)“ _‘J:q,prm(egf' 55_;4‘ fr-jcfs,n_
“5"09 T clinEs mar’

(-$




o the c)wﬂ ofb @r\aréan@/r\hﬂ

“Thean Hou Bye %d/“mg M
Eaﬁ?fé gc@uf ,?Dmd'@f* —chﬂ\fﬁ
f;f@u, e dream  of f)&:czmwg an
[faﬁp Cesut C‘cm Aol become o

s‘emlﬂg. T @Fﬁfei&#@ tha+ Fou
nues fed in MGL pregedt,

m] Ga:dnerv‘i_lﬂte et
Siqus “
N 09 - —

MEeexs

and  py
Goal o becomitg an 2. Eegle. Steelod

_H“Q““‘!’* fo Gieotp or his dme ond

Supfort,

Thany &Eou tor four
Sufferd ot W Qrogeet,

1




Gardnerville Town Board /n\

Gardneyville
AGENDA ACTION SHEET g Nevada

For Possible Action: Approve Health and Sanitation & Public Works Departments

Monthly Report of activities

Recommended Motion: Approve as submitted
Funds Available: L Yes I N/A

Department: Administration
Prepared by: Marie Nicholson, Office Specialist

4. Meeting Date: July 2, 2019
5. Time Requested: N/A
6. Agenda: ¥ Consent _ Administrative
7. Background Information:
Trash (May landfill) Credit Cards & E-Checks (May)
Residential Accounts 1834 - total Total Amount $11,935.33
Single Family 1775 Total Transactions 103
Duplex 16 Visa 78 |$ 6,808.46
Triplex 3 MasterCard 5 $ 1,009.69
EoupleK - AMEX/Discover | 1 |$ 123.05
Sixplex 1 Terminal 0 $ 60.32
Office Residential 30 E-Checks 19 $ 3,933.81
Commercial accts 234
Greenwaste accts 1414
Cleanup dumpsters 16
X cans 335
# new residential accts 8 new, 15 transferred
# new commercial accts 0 new, 2 transferred
Minimum User 24
Total tons - trash 419.12
Total tons - greenwaste 45.45

8. Other Agency Review of Action: I Douglas County ¥ N/A
9. Board Action:
T Approved _ Approved with Modifications

Agenda Item #2



Gardnerville Town Board /n\

Gar ’dnervﬂle
AGENDA ACTION SHEET g Nevada

1. For Possible Action: Approve June 2019 claims.

2. Recommended Motion: Approve as submitted
Funds Available: L Yes “ N/JA

3. Department: Administration

Prepared by: Marie Nicholson, Office Specialist
4. Meeting Date: July 2, 2019 Time Requested: N/A
5. Agenda: ¥ Consent L Administrative

6. Background Information: See attached.

7. Other Agency Review of Action: | Douglas County M N/A

8. Board Action:

. Approved
" Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

717

m

Agenda Item #3



240 1 ebed l.N\ m WY 7#:95:60 6T0T/92/90 U0 UCSIOUDIN 21E[ Ag Uy
DO'SLETE § SUCHIESURLL 3010AUT 52101 uoijesusdwo] preoq - gST 0TS WUNODY
S0TZA9 # ATIAYEANQAYD
00'05¢ 6T02/£0/90 6T02/Z0/90 6I0T/£0/90  610Z/0£/50 384D Aq pied 40 NMO.L q4vog 61-9 Jsuuap v e - $9£8
250769 # JTIALANGHYD
Q0°5£2 6102/£0/90 6102/£0/90 6T0Z/£0/50  T0Z/0E/S0 YD Ag pled J0 NMOL Qdvod 61-9 121B|S BPUIT - 6962
600769 #
00052 6102/£0/90 610T/£0/90 6T0Z/Z0/50  610Z/0£/50 3I8UD AQ pred ITAD Auv0d 61/9 Bl AR LRBUUSY - 0968Z
986169 #
00052 6102/£0/90 6TQZ/L0/90  6T0T/£0/90  6T0Z/0E/S0 M2 Aq pled ATIIAD ayvod 61/9 e1BNdIH M AT - 83ZF
¥B6169 #
00'05¢ 6102/£0/90 6102//0/90 6T0Z/20/60  GI0Z/0£/50 $I8LY) Ag pied ATIIAD qdvod 61/% uesBuluusy 3 PR ~ bTHEE
uoriesuadwo) pleog - ST 0TS 1UN0ODY
unupy sfjiaeuplen - Tz Jswipedag
g2'esTs T SUGRIBSUZL[ DIICAL] 5jE104 SNUIATY ~ O) UBWLedag
97°caT4 T SUCHDESURI | BJICAUT S{P10] I0OUT 25897 fIUSY - GOT TIE UNCIoY
T0LT69 # anNn4=y ,
gereat 610Z/1€/50 6I0C/TE/S0  6TOZ/TE/SC  6I0Z/EZ/60 FRYS Ag pied Mdvd I9VITHIH d3G 61- WOVY JO UoIfiay S0ye] U0SIED - DS9S
BW0OUT 5SED fIUSY - QO TIE JWNo0Y -
INUIAIY ~ QU JUsWwHedaq
76'980'59% 0T SuchoesURS] 93I0AUL 52101 asuadxg predald - QOO SST JUnoooy
63769 #
19'284'91 610Z/12/90 6102/12/90 610T/1Z/90  6T0Z/€0/50 ¥8Y2 Ag pred F-NAUYD FabST OUT eoURINSUT PeayY UaLRf - Z0PE
+8/769 # SHINQW-ZT HIDYNYIN 0z
00'01¢E 6T0Z/12/90 6107/12/90 6102/12/90  6T0Z/82/50 ¥28UD Aq pred ANNOD SYIDNOA  -6T 6¢6T X0d USpUIR - 18358UNS04 SN - 69
: IJTHUAINGYYD
£LLTE9 # 40 NMOL "8E£0b 0¢-61 uonIjald
00002 610Z/12/30 6102/12/90 6T0Z/1Z/90  610T/6Z/%C ¥RUD Aq pred SINWD dI LIS 8EE0b-ANWD [EJUSWUCIAUT JO UDISIAI] BIRIS AN -~ B579
69789 #
00°000°Sy 6T0Z/12/90 6107/12/90 &T0T/TZ/90  BTOZ/ET/90 38UD Ag Pled ITIAD JAADFT SHABUPIED) 1818 UlRl - THL7
0/9Z69 #
00'SET BTOZ/TZ/90 610Z/12/90 6I07/12/90  610Z/T0/90 303U Ag pled ITIAS £869 aur selfofouyIal Bor ~ TS
, 89269 # TTIANINTIYD
0'¢19 6T0T/TZ/90 610Z/T2/90 6I02/TT/90  6T0Z/E1/90 3p3YD Ag pled 40 NAOL 8597 SIU9AZ pajeasld - SHEEE
009269 #
00°0s 6T02/1Z/90 6102/77/90 6I0Z/TZ/90  6TOZ/ET/90 Payd Aq pled ITIIAD 0Z-6T OV qnp) suory Asflep U0SIE) - 09
- 685269 # :
00°8se 6102/12/9C 610Z/1¢/90 GI0Z/TZ/90  6T0Z/E0/90 J¥RyD Aq pled £$68991 £660H05E Iikg - 88792
QL5269 # 61
§/°09¢ 6102/12/90 810Z/T2/90 610Z/12/90  610T/0Z/S0 YPaUD AQ pled 049568005 -9 0£956300% d¥ISY - §86/¢
956769 #
95°£8T 610Z/£0/90 5T0Z/L0/S0  6T0T/Z0/90  6I0T/L1/50 oy Aq pled £00-219/049-T00 09+0856£ S0IBS [RDURULY 13T - 9ZETZ
asuadxg predsid - 000 55T JUnoDY
. . UMmao] afjiaisupien - 19 pung
JUNOUIY 90[0AU] 23e(] JURWAR] 21 poAlaDoy 31eq /5 SR on(  ejeq S0I0AUT  L0sEsY DloH SEIS U005 S0I0ALT "CN 2210AUT IOpUS,

SIIVL4SVIND W iT40aF THINY

61/52/90 - 6T/TE/S0 abuey <eq juswAied

Hoday uonnquasia 1/o Aq ajqeAed syunodny




g Jo z abeq m - m WY Z4:95:60 6T0Z/GZ/90 UO UTS|OYDIN Stel Ag uny
8CLI69 # ITITAYINGHYD
89°/51 610Z/1£/50 6T07/1E/S0  6T0T/TE/S0  6TOZ/PT/S0 ¥payD Aq pred 40 NMOL §556¥b I SuUoRN|os [eIpaly IRdskul - 96E0E
sej|ddng 821130 - 008 EES JUN0ODY
G e56'FE T SUOMHIBSUEI| S8JI0AU] S[R}0| S93IAISG BB - QET TES JUN0DDY
. 766169 #
5Z'956'% 6T0Z/£0/90 6T0Z/£0/90 6T0C/£0/90  610Z/€2/50 3r8uD Ag pled ITIIAD et dioD Dd MET IQINIA JRJUURE - ZLETT
seolnieg (B9 - 0ET TZS JUNaDY
65 /71% T SUORIBSUR | 9IICAUT se10) uswidinkg s9sea ¢ S1USY ~ 9ET 0TS N0y
TPLZ69 #
65221 810Z/72/90 6I02/TZ/o0  610E/1E/50  610T/10/90 ¥payD Aq pled 26869491 112P££9508 34l ¥SN Yooy - €54t
juaiudinbg sosea g SIUIY - 9£1"0TS JUN0DY
00°0%35 T suonoesuel] a0l0AUT S{eJ0 ] Dq e - £160°0ZS UNAddY
100C69 #
onor 610Z/£0/90 6T0Z/20/00  6T0T/L0/S0  610Z/8Z/50 3payD Aq pled HSYD All3d ITIIAD 61/ ysed Apad - joled “UBLIna - 6452
ogd Juiel - L60"02S oY
[ A4 T SUOIDESUELL ]ICALT S{Ej0L Jemog - 680702S UN0oY
: 970z #  "ON "LOOV AYVIINNS
2£'02¢ 610Z/£0/90 6102/£0/90 6T0Z/L0/90  6T0Z/SE/SO yoayD Aq pled §6//6//060095870C0T T 61-5 600958¢ ABIBUT AN - $T6T
MO - 680°0CTS JUNOODY
696714 £ SUQIDBSURI] 320AUL S0 sedoy 7@ wswsde|day - $RO°0TS JUNOIY
- 619769 # Luelfold
6699 610Z/12/90 6T0T/TT/90 6T0T/TZ/50  6T0T/LT/50 FPRYD Ag piad ATIAD  1SOJV1 6T-4 WBwamnsoyd fAjune) sebnoq - 6621
199769 # .
6L'8F 610Z/12/90 610T/T2/90 610Z/1Z/90  610Z/€T/S0 ¥RYD AQ pled 9geT QcTEET ajemplieH 83y - S86TT
195269 #
115 610Z/12/90 610Z/TT/90 6T0T/T2/o0  610T/Z0/50 R Aq pred g7l SS/CET eMpley 20Y - G36TT
- qeday g uswaderday -~ $80 0TS JUNOY
$0°STTS T suopoesuRl| So10AUT s|0 L BuisidRApY - Z L0 0ES 1Unoy
654769 # 6TOZTESD
#0'51T 610Z/12/90 6T0Z/12/90 6T0T/TT/O0  610Z/1£/50 3payD Aq pled ¢T6£90T -GTOSLT dno.n elpaly 2PeASN BLBIS - £E9TT
BulsiyBApY ~ 2 £0°07S JUN0DY
GETLTS 7 SUO[DBSURI [, 3210AU] sje10 ) ssusdxg auoydael - §5070ZS WN0ITY
IPLT69 # S
0L/S 6T0T/TE/SO 6TOZ/IE/S0  BT0T/TE/S0  6102/91/50 $eyD AQ pled  -Z09090-9S8E-784-547  61/5 958E-787 Jeonuold - £0T5T
ThLTEY # =
69'P1IT 510Z/1£/50 6T0Z/TE/S0  6T02/1E/S0  6T0T/9T/SC ¥09UD Aq Pled  -6/T0S0-PETL-284-G4L  6T/S bETL-C8L JBuol] - £0T62
asuadxy sucydael, - $50°0ZG 1UN0IoY
99°6% T suoppesUel| 23J0AUT S[e10] {e2Ipaid9Y-583d ~ TOT TS WUNo2dY
¥62769 # SWRTINEAd welbolg
396 610Z/+T/90 6T0Z/FT/O0  6T0Z/HT/00  610Z/£0/90 ¥r2UD A pled TeL 61-0 syy=uag saedoldwa Dijqnd S35 AN - 61207
1espsiy1ey-s43d - TOT TS WNeody
UIUpPY IJIIBURIRS - TZ6 Waliledaq
umo] afjiarauplesy - §T9 pund
TUNOWY 90loAdT . 21eQ WellAed S1B0 DanRday 21eq 179 TIE(] 8NQ 218 S0l0AU]  GOSERY PRRH STILEIG UORdUS53(] S210AUT *ON 2010AUT TOpUBA

61/52/90 - 6T/1¢/50 oBuey s1eq juswiied

1oday uonnquiasid 1/9 Aq ajqeAed sjunoddy

FEFEATIE

TI40TL AVIND




g 4o ¢ abeg Nw\. < WY ZH:95760 8T0Z/62/50 UG UCSIOUDIN RHRIY AG UMY
195769 #
861 610Z/T2/90 6TOZ/TZ/90  6T0Z/TT/50  6T0T/TT/H0 sy Aq pred 9gzT £607ET auempleH a0y - 586171
80€769 #
T6'8T 6T0Z/41/90 BIOT/HT/O0  6T0TMHT/00  6102/22/50 3paud Ag pled 04Tk TTH£98 (AYL) esnoy speq - 0157
852269 # :
0501 6T0Z/¥1/90 6TOC/PT/90  6T0Z/T/S0  610Z/60/50 oau) Ag pled 0519590 TrRToTT Jsquum s} - 1212
L6TE69 #
AN 6T0Z/FI/90 6TOT/%T/90  6TOZ/VIfG0  610T/2T/50 3payD Aq pled TTOONIWAN  9ES8/NIWAN [2133NpU] |euIlsed - 12881
S SITZ69 #
0s°/ 610Z/%1/90 6TOZ/PT/O0  6T0T/PT/80  6I0Z/22/50 3P3U3 AQ preg FOES0Z  TOO-QTES/S0Z SJEIUSY LIBYY - GBEET
SITE69 #
8E°G 610Z/%T/90 6I0Z/APT/90  6TOT/HPT/OC  6T0Z/22/50 ¥y Ag pied $0E50Z  TO0-Z0ES/S0T S|EJuay WYY - SBIET
ST1769 #
0S'ZHT GTOZ/AT/90 6T0Z/FT/90  6I0E/F1/90  6T0T/ST/S0 xRy Ag pled ¥0£S0Z  TO0-2S9EPS0T S[EUaY WBYY - §8pET
STT269 #
oy 6TOT/PT/00 5T0Z/FT/90  6I0EM1/90  610T/20/50 34D Aq pled ¥0ES0Z  100-EVEDGH0Z S[EIUSY UBYY - S8bET
: : steday g Juswase|day - R00ZS WNCIYY
/' 60E'TS 7 suopoesuel] aDjoAU] s[e3o ) Bulherds paap - £L£070TS WUNODDY
7T0Z69 #
00'058 610Z/20/90 6T0Z//0/90  610Z/£0/90  6T0Z/0T/S0 ¥2YD Aq pled GPSETTT £667588E UL SUONNIOS DY UBHINN - L£04
+TL16Y # [onuoD
$L'65% 6102/TE/S0 6TOC/TE/SE  6T0Z/TE/SO  6T0T/6Z/40 3=yD Aq pied ITHAD WEL peam pue sied Auno) seifnog - 0FTT
Buiieids paspp - ZE£0"0TS UN0DDY
O[T 1P SHIRY - £T6 Jusiipiedag
£'826'L$ £7 SuopoBsuRl| DI0AUT S[PI0] WWIPY SEIARURIED - TZ6 Jusunedaq
G/'ee1$ 7 SUOfsesuRl | 9DI0AUT S0 sesuadxy snooue|jRosiy ~ T00"0S%S WNoDY
124769 # ApyEg
00 /H1 6102/12/90 610Z/TZ/00 610Z/12/90  6T0T/T0/90 ¥I8U3 Ag pred 500088 TTTIAD 5/£0S l[and 30 Justuitedaq B1R3S AN .mhmm“
820269 # ajeg
GL'9E 610Z/£0/30 6102/£0/90 610%/L0/90  6T0Z/10/90 ¥Ry Ag pred 500088 ITIIA-D 005 2qnd Jo wedsq I191S AN - LEEb
sasu3dxg Sno3URjEssIk ~ TO0'0SS JUN0DY
057454 T SUOHDBSUE] 9DI0AUL S[R10 | DIBMPOS - GOREES JUNCIDY
061269 #
05°/E 6T0T/H1/90 6L0Z/F1/90  6T0ZA4T/90  6T02/T0/90 o240 Aq pled ATIAD 269bF oup D pasenbs A - 8H99T
. SIEMAIDSG - GOF CEG JUNOI0Y
?6'899%  SUOIESUE. | 3DI0AUT s1E30 . sonpddng ad1uO - 008°CES 1UN0IDY
$£/T60 # ITHALANQEYS
5£'98¢ 6102/17/90 6TOT/TZ/O0  6T0Z/TZ/90  6102/90/90 ¥auD Ag pred 40 NMOL 1/9710T Auedwo) Aiddng sougl, - 6/48
6T9T69 # uieshold
99911 610Z/TZ/90 6T0Z/TT/90 6T0T/TZ/90  6T0T/4T/S0 oayd Ag pled ITNAD  NYHINOT 61-6 JusWaInDold AJunad selbnog - /6671
806169 #
579 5102/£8/90 6102/£0/90  6T0Z/20/9C  BIOZ/EZ/S0 /YD A pred ITIAD 619%5 BupaeiBug g sajdol | sepejeady - ZET/
s31jddng s3I0 - 00Z EES WNODDY
unUpY SfjiARupIRD - TT6 Walpedag
: umo] sjjiaIBupies - 919 pund
JUNOWY S0[0AUT 1B JUSWARY] 91B(] PeAledey] 918d 1/9 2B BNG 9l AIOAU]  HOSEDY PlPH smeEls UORALDS0] S10AUY QN 23|0ALT 10BUSA

61/52/90 - 6T/1E/50 obuey 21e( 1USuAed

Hoday uonngriasia 1/9 Aq ajqeAed sjunoddy

$1O¥ 12 AViED W 174005 UFDND




§ 40  9fied S & WY 2395160 610Z/5Z/90 U0 UOSIOUDIN BLEi Aq Uy
80€Z69 #
81°5¢2 ETOZAT/90 6TOZ/¥T/A0  6102/PT/90  610¢/90/50 YD Aq pled 0LTE $05098 (eyL} esnoy sped - 0152
86CTO0 #
99°09 610Z/¥1/90 610Z/F3/90 6T0Z/4T/90  6107/ST/SO 331D Ag pled 0G9S/0T  8TE85¢-0ESE UL BALOWIOINY AJIIRY,0 - BETZT
86C7C69 #
6692 BTOT/F1/90 BT0Z/PT/00  STOZ/AT/O0  6102/€0/50 3oL Ag pled 0595407 £20957-0£5¢ JUT BAROWOWY ARY,O - 86TTT
. STTZ69 #
65°S 6102/+1/90 6TOZ/F1/50  6TI0ZMAPT/90  6102/12/50 303YD Ag pled +0£802  I00-PTZ0LSOZ S[eilay wely - Sarel
Jpedsy @ Juswsoe(day « $RO0TS WLUNOXY
00'05as T SUCHIBSURLE SOAUT sje10| Buldelds pasm - ZE£0°0TS 1UNCIDY
o069 # .
0p'os8 6102/20/93 510Z/£8/90  6107//0/90  610C/0T/S0 3pRuD Aq pred 6¥S6ITT £66TE8RE uj suoln|og oy UslinN - Z£03
Burdeads paap - Z£0°0ZS JUnoDDY
SO 211N 1BYL0 - 976 Iusuledsq
SET00'FS QT SUOIDBsUR) ] BJI0AUT S|E10] UORERIDRY 1B SIIEd - £26 lUslilledag
9/°651'1$ 7 SUOHDBSURI) IIKIAUL 5301 s1oafolg ews - LTI EES JUNoooy
619269 # welbold
86'6L1 810Z/T2/90 6T0Z/T2/90  GI0Z/1T/90  610T/L2/S0 3D Ag pled ITIAD  1S0JV16T-S WaWRIN30lg Auno) seiBnog - Z66ZT
. 8597769 #
08'cl6 6102/F1/90 6T0Z/¥1/30 6T0Z/1/90  6I0T/TT/S0 ¥sYD Ag pred 0451990 LTLLTCT JBquinT s¥a3 - TZTZ
s1oefoid ||eWS - LI EES Ny
88°¢71s 7 SUOIRSURL| SHOAUT S|l IG R SBD - E00'TES LNV
PPOCe9 # ,
P9 6102/12/90 6T0Z/TT/90 6T02/12/9C  6I0DZ/TE/SO ¥28U3 Aq pled 80€8 S8596£6T-54D 71 ABiaud siAld - H18E
TLOTEY #
#5965 6T07/£0/30 6102/£0/90 610T//0/50  6T0Z/ST/S0 sy Ag pled 80£3 £798Z6T-54D OT1 ABmug SIAld - +18€E
[0 @ SED - £00"ZES JUN0IY
95'6385% 7 SUOITIRSURL| FIOAL] SIEI0] 9734 IWEN - £60°0ZS 1Un03Y
ST7C69 #
§8°79¢ 610Z/4T/90 6T0Z/%1/90 6TOT/FIfO0  610Z/02/50 3paUD Aq Pied IATIAD peREe-T101 U \1Us]) UBpJeD) IsnoUUIstD - Z9£3
066769 #
00'8CE 5T0Z/£0/90 6107/20/90 &T02/£0/90  6T0T/TE/SC ¥o8ud Ag pled JTIIAD Teat JUI uogonisueD Pedwl - /FT1/Z
- oRg Wl - /607025 N0y
£0'6bbS T SUO[DBESLE] | 9DI0AUT SIEI0 | JSMOd ~ 680708 1UNC0Y
£20269 #  "ON "LOOV AdYWWNS
€06k 6102/£0/90 BT0Z/Z0/A0  6T0Z/Z0/90  6102/57/50 W) AQ pled 0TOZS/#3H08T6/00007 T 61-5 +08164 ABSBUZ AN - $Z5T
_ 18mM0d - 5807028 WNoIdY
90's/5% § SUCHIBSURI| S0IOAUT sjej01 Heday 3 yuswedepdsy - FRE'0TS WN0DY
195269 #
0s'e 6T07/12/20 6107/12/90 610¢/12/90  610T/EE/S0 oY) Ad pled 9ezT TTTEET alemMple 20y - 98611
dleday B juswenejdey - $20°0TS WNOY
UOREaDOY B} SIBE - £26 JowHeds(
UMOL BjjIAlBupieg - 0TS pund
JUNOULY SDICAUT . oje( JUSWARd ]2 PaAlzooy 21.d /9 I8 =n¢] e o0I0AU]  UOSESY PlRH SNIEIS UORALIDSI() e210AUT “ON S0I0AUT JGIIETY

61/52/90 - 61/T£/50 obuey 918 JUsWAe

Joday uonnqguiisia 1/9 Aq sjqeAed sjunoddy

STV ANTHD W LTI £YINY




g Jo § sbey &\ m WY 2519560 6T0Z/GZ/90 U0 UOSIOUDIN SHE A Uy
£69Z69 #
00°54L'T 6T07/TZ/90 6T02/12/50 6I0T/T2/90  6I0Z/6T/50 JpRY3 Aq pled 000" 6£68 66£00T JU] S21LPDOSSY PUE SOLLY ~ Z107
s1afaly [eRde) - 000 To8 WNoY
mN.mNH + SUQHIOESUR] | |DI0AUT mmmup_. SHLIoLiun - 8C0°CES unoooy
. TT6169 #
65 6102/£0/90 8102/20/90 610T/L0/90  6102/8¢/<50 3pay3 Ag pled DEE0O0  S6/B/FTNTA JUL COSEY - §B/S
TT6T69 #
¥2°017 6T0T/L0/90 610Z/70/90 6102/£0/90  6I0T/TZ/S0 =YD Aq pred DEE000  ETZLZPTNIEN JUL OS]y - §8/§
TT6165 #
6EY 6102/£0/90 6T0Z/£0/50  ST0Z/£0/90  6T0Z/P1/50 yoeyD Aq pred 0EE000  Z89S/PTNAY U7 0S|y - GBS
TT5T6Q #
+T0T 6102//0/90 6102/£0/90  B10Z/40/90  6T02/£0/50 s A pled 0£E000  9S9E/FTNIYT JUJ 0S¥ - G8/S
SUUBHUA - 8ZTO'ZES UN0IY
86'50/% 7 SUQDRSURL | H0IGALT S|ej0l 1O B SeD - E00°TES N0y
Y9769 #
09'1¢£T 6102/12/90 6T02/TC/90  6T0T/12/90  6I0Z/TE/SO AIBYD A pled g0£8  SBSAEGT-SHD JT1 ABlsug sRAlS - 185
TL6TH9 #
8C'blt 6T0Z/£0/50 6102/£0/90  6T0Z/£0/90  6T0T/ST/GD $PRYD Aq pred 058 £ZH8THT-SAD OTT ABIaug siedd - pT8E
110’8 58D - £00°TES WN0IDY
S6'TE8'TS 7 SUONIBSUR) | S30AUT S[EI0] peoy Jey - £01°0TS JUN00Y
: 1£1269 # ITIASINTAYD
00072 6102/51/90 BT0Z/41/90 6T0T/PT/90  610T/8T/50 eyl Aq pled 40 NMOL 1sa-6102 dwe) wno, Bunds eurd - g5/
01769 # TTTIAMINCAHYD
S6'TIST 6107/£0/90 6T0Z//0/50  610Z//0/90  ST0Z/0E/TT woeyD Ag pled 40 NMOL  OTTHZIO0-ANI OT1 0DS3AA - 8ERCE
peoy Juel - 0T 0ZS JUnoY
58992'0¢ T SuORIESURL] SJI0AUT slero L sae6ry 39805 - §60°0ZS JUN00DY
SZO0TE9 #  ON 120V AAVWWNS
§8°957'9 6102/£0/90 610Z/£0/90 610T/40/90  610Z/52/50 ¥ouD AQ Pled  Q08LSLL0DENSSETO00T T 61-G 9£0958T ABJRU3 AN - 26T
sy511 192405 - §6070¢ 5 N0y
90'766% 07 SUCHDESURI] 3010AU] s[ejo L deday 13 uswedejdsy - 20 0TS JUNoddy
619269 # welbo.g
Th'e 610Z/12/90 6107/T2/90 6T0Z/IT/O0  6T0T/£Z/S0 ¥oeUD Aq pred ITIAD LSOOV 61-5 WBWRIMDOL Auney) sejbnog - /6621
195769 #
L 7ara 6107/12/90 BT0Z/TZ/90  6T0T/IZ/90  6I0T/EZ/S0 39U Aq pled 9ceT TTTEET alempleH 20V - §86TT
. 195769 #
66°TT 610Z/1Z/90 6T0Z/12/90 6T0T/T2/90  6102/Te/S0 Yy Ag pled il 9/0EET 2leMmpIeRH 80V - 5R6TT
195769 #
66°LT 6I0Z/TZ/A0 610Z/12/90 610Z/T2/90  6T0Z/5T/H0 2D Ag pled 92T $8TZET alempleH 20y - G8ATT
955769 # ’
6546 6102/T2/90 6I0Z/TZ/90  510T/12/90  6T10T/0E/50 ¥osUD Ag pred $ETL0 97ISTE Ul s1onpold BulpRAl _LRIS T - £119
80ET69 #
TTELT 610Z/1/90 6TOT/PT/90  6TOZAT/S0  BT0Z/ET/SO ¥2u) Aq pled L1k LL4798 (Y1) esnop sHed - 0152
Jedoy By wswadeday ~ $2Y0TS WN0IDY
Do DljqRd JSYI0 ~ 926 UeWieds]
i WMO), B|IAIBUPIED ~ OTY PUN]
JUNOUIY SCI0AUT  93B(] JURSWARY D1B(Q PaAlRlay ERER) 218 =Ny 918(] S2I0AUT  UOSESY PISH SNIels LONALIDSaJ Sdj0AUT O] SOAUT

81/52/90 - 61/1£/50 sbuey 1eQ JUSWAR]

Moday uonnqusia 1/ Aq m_n_m>mn_ SIUNO0DDY

TOPUBA

$IINY SNIND W 1S3 VIND




g Jo g abed NL\ m WY 2195760 6T0Z/ST/90 U UOS|OUDIN SURl AQ Uy
75T 7 Suofoesual ] S0I0AUT S|EJ0L SaLE|es IPRIIU0D - 0T T 9TS UNCI0Y
£97769 # SEDIAIRS [PUU0SIad
88'142'T 6102/%1/90 6102/41/90  6T0T/HT/O0  6T0T/1E/50 ¥ayd Aq pled F0T £9TZ  Uoqory anig eqp sesudRIug 1IW - L6912
£92269 # S20IAAS [PUUOSIRd
¥9'0/P 610Z/%1/90 6T0Z/4PT/90  6I0Z/T/90  6T0T/1E/S0 oayd Ag pled #0T g9T7  uoqdrd enjg eqp seslidizul IOW - /691T
saIRjes IDBIU0D - 0T T 9TS JUN0IDY
0oLt g sUONDESURI| 2DI0AUT sjeio | wonesuadwo) pieod - 0§T70TS JUNOODY
. S0TC69 # ITIARINTHYD
00052 6T0T/£0/90 6T0Z/Z0/00  610Z/£0/90  6T0Z/0L/50 ¥a8U0 Ag pled 40 NMCL GAvYCH 61-9 JBuuap ¥ ARy - $OER
250769 # FTHAYINTYYD
00'sLe 610Z/£0/90 6T02//0/90 6T0T/Z0/50  610Z/0¢/50 }RU3 Ag ped 40 NMOL qQdvo8a 61-9 I31e[5 BPUIT - 656¢
600769 #
00052 610¢/£0/90 6T0Z/20/90  6102/Z0/9C  6T0T/0£/90 ¥39U2 Aq pied dTIIAD Quvod 61/9 1Bl A WBLUSY - 0968C
986769 #
00'05T 610Z/£0/20 6102/£0/90 6I0Z/£0/90  610T/0£/S0 spayD Aq pleq ITIAD aQuvod 61/9 esanbBi M PAOT - 88ZF
8616% #
00°05¢ 610Z/20/90 610Z/£0/30 6T02/£0/90  6I0Z/0E/S0 3R AQ pred JTIAS aQdvod 61/9 ussBuIULsH 2 [PEYIIW ~ bTHEE
uonesustdwo) pleoq - QST 0TS JUNODDY
uopRIues @ yijeay ~ §26 Juswpedsq
1€7/2'01% { suonoesURI | 93I0ALT s|ej0) osuadxy predaid - GO0'SST WUN0ITY
- 68/769 #
TE16E'8 6102/72/90 6T0C/TZ/90 6T0Z/1Z/O0  6T0Z/E0/90 ¥RuD Ag pred FNEAYD FSFST JUT soURINSUT pRsy Ualiepy - Z0HE
. 049269 #
00'9¢e 610Z/12/90 610Z/12/90 BI0Z/1Z/90  610%/T0/90 =YD Aq pled JT1IAD £869 aug sABoouLal. OO - ZHSZ
009265 #
00°04 6T0T/TZ/90 610Z/TZ/90  610T/T2/90  6IDT/ET/90 308D Ag pied FTIAD 0c-6T Ov i gn|3 suory As[ep UosIeD - 049
+OPCE9 #
009072 610Z/¥1/90 .6T0Z/FT/O0  6I0Z/T/90  610Z/T0/90 MpAYD Aq pled £9E 61000796 JUT 3IeMYOS VM - 0BSET
: asuadxy piedatd - 000'SST JUN02dY
00'007% T SUONDESLIAI] DIICAUT S|Ej0 1 SIQEAISISY SIUNOCDDY - 000"STT UNOIY
P C00CE9 #
00°a0c 6T0Z/£0/30 6T0Z//0/90 610T/L0/90  6T0Z/OE/SO >p3UD Aq pled ATIAD 0T£0EE S|IMBUpIRD) 199415 UIBW - TH0AT
GLAIDIDY SJUNOISY ~ DOCSTT UNODY
ues 3 (el aiaoupien - TI9 pund
8L'b8y'16% P/ SUOROESURL] 2310AUT S[E10L WMOL IIBURIRD - T PUnd
01°692'5T$ 7Z SUQ[IRSEL] SDI0AUT S[EI0). SHAOM DIGnd JOYIQ - 976 Jusuedeg
00°685"+$ ¢ suogoesuzl] a0l0AL] siejo syreloag fende) - §OO'Z9S JUN0DY
£69769 #
00'P18'T 810Z/12/90 610Z/TZ/90 6I0Z/1Z/90  6T0T/62/50 »aud Ag pled T00'6ES8 008007 JUI S33eD0ssyY pue souinT - 2162
spafold jegide) - 000 TS N0y
SUOM DN BYRQ - 9Z6 wetuinedag
UMol sjjiARupies - Q9 pund
JONOWY S0I0AUT - 9B JURUIABR 2]B( PaAi=IaY 91EQ /D S1B(] enQ  91B(] SDI0AL]  UOSEdY PRH SHIEIS ucpdiosad 20I10AUT “ON S9I0AUT JOPUSA

61/52/90 - 61/15/60 obuey ajeq uswAed

1odoy uonnquisia 1/9 Aq sjqeAed sjunoddy

1YL AXTRD W T1i03s VDL




8-¢

g jo / abed WY TF195:60 6T0Z/G2/90 UO UOSIOUDIN SHE] Al Uy
98'687% T SUODESURI| 90J0AU] SR 19M0Od - 680"0ZS JUNCIDY
970¢69 # "ON "100Y AUVHINNS
98'68¢ 6T0T/£0/90 6102/20/90 6T0T/L0/90  6107/52/50 oeuD Aq pled S6//6//06009587000T T 61-G 6009587 ABJaug AN - $Z62
JomMO¢ - G80"0LS UNCIDY
brararade GT SUCLIRSUEL] 820AUYL s[ezo] Jreday @ jusweoenday - $80°07S UNODY
619269 # wzibold
00'99 6102/12/90 6T0Z/12/90 6I0Z/TT/90  6I0T/LT/S0 D Ag pled INIAD LSOOV 619 WBaIN0Id Auna) sejinog - Z662T
195268 #
+LTT 6107/TE/90 6T0Z/TZ/50  6102/T2/90  610Z/€T/S0 ¥Ry Ag pred 9ceT TTTEET aJempieH 20V - G86TT
T95C69 #
6.'8% 6102/12/90 6T0Z/TZ/90 &10Z/TT/90  6107/€2/50 PRy Ag pred =l OETEET aleMpley =0¥% - 98611
T95¢60 #
86°€T 6102/12/90 6T0Z/1Z/90  BTOZ/TE/90  610Z/9T/40 3}pauD Ag pled 9ET STZZET alempleH 30y - 58611
T95769 # '
ZH'ET 610Z/1Z/90 6T07/TZ/90  6T0Z/1T/90  6T0Z/ST/H0 8L Ag pled acet 8LTCET alemplay 22Y - 58617
20cT69 #
S8 610Z/PT/90 ATOZ/AFT/O0  BTOZAIG0  6T0Z/ST/SO 3}28U) AQ pled 0L1 £97298 (®YL) @snoy sued - 0152
80E769 #
6¥ET 510Z/+1/90 6T0C/FT/90  BTOZ/ATIO0  6T0Z/01/50 2042 Ag DIEd 0L1% L6798 (ay1) 8snoy sueq - QTS
’ 80L769 #
86'TT 6T0Z/FT/90 6I0C/PT/O0  6TOT/HFT/O0  6T0T/62/50 ¥Rayd Aq pled 0Tt 67£658 {(PYL) esnoy sHed - 015
: 867769 #
0geT 6T0Z/+1/90 610Z/FT/90 6I0T/HT/90  6102/0T/S0 PBUD AQ PlEd 05989/0T  SBE4SC-0ESE DUY AROLIOINY AllIBY,O - 86TZT
) 862269 #
26°CT 6TO0Z/¥1/90 6102/%1/90 6I0TAT/90  610T/70/50 ey Ag pled 0595201 168952-0£SE UL BANOWOINY AISH.0 - §6T7T
867769 #
669C BT0C/#1/90 6T0Z/FT/S0  6T0T/FT/90  6I0T/E0/50 oYy Aq pled 0995401 LZ0957-0ESE JUT SAROWOIY ARY,0 - BETTT
86TCHY #
66°50F 610T/4T/90 BI0Z/PT/80  GTOZ/APT/O0  610Z/10/S0 3Py Aq pred 0595401 269552-0E5¢€ 2UE afoweINy AIRY,O - 86TZT
862760 #
0b'86 6T0¢/¥1/90 6T0Z/PT/90  &T0Z/AT/90  610Z/62/%0 32D Aq pleg 05945/0T  /918957-0€SE JUT SAROWIOINY APH.O - 86TZT
6/6169 #
0€TET 610¢/£0/90 6T0T/£0/90  610Z/Z0/90  6T0Z/0E/H0 3240 Ag pIRd ATIAD 045219 Jsldinbz g XoN1} PARING - 8ET
6L6T69 #
£6'00E 6102/£0/90 6L0Z/Z0/90 BT0Z/Z0/90  6T0ZHT/H0 33U Ad pled ATIIAD 855219 Waldinby g xondl papms - §£1
Neday B wowsseidsy - PROT0ES 1WN0I0Y
87414 2 sucnoesuRlL 930AUT gm0 esuadxzy suoydas]l - 507075 UNCOY
. THLT69 # g
65°L5 6T0Z/T£/50 6I0Z/TE/S0  BTOT/TE/S0  6T0T/9T/50 ¥oays AQ pled  -708080-958E-28/-544 61/5 958€-287 BRUOlY - £0T6e
hL169 # 5
6511 610/ 1E/S0 610Z/TE/50 6T0Z/TE/S0  6T0Z/9T/50 ¥oauD AQ pled  -6/7080-bET/-28/-6/L  61/5 bET/-28/ Jaluoly - £016¢
asusdxgy auoydaja) -~ §50°07G N
UONBNURS P RIRAY - §T6 owedaq
ues 33 yyeaH sjjin=upian - TTg pund
UROUIY 8010AUT | 9)B(Q RIBWABS 21R( ponaoay 31eq /9 3180 oNg  B1Eq e9I0AU] STeIS NIG RER R I

61/52/90 - 61/1£/50 9bury 3eq uswAed

Moday uonnquiasia 1/ Aq sjqelAed sjunodoy

“ON S2]0AU], EEEEED

33ANT AVIRD W 110N iNIND




e

g Jo g abey WY ZH:95:60 6102/52/90 U0 UOS|OUDIN alep Ag Lmy
62'891'211$ LIT suepoesurl] AOAUL Sleaot puels) AUAIDY JESA |20S J0Ud = %
15'£39'02% £} sucnoesuel] aioau] SjEl0i ues g yijeol sjjialeupies - TT9 pung :
CZ'112'6% 8¢ suGHIRsURL | 0AUT SiPI01 Lo1jElIUES g 3jedl - ST6 Weuniedsg
ag' /€% T SUOHDBSURY] 30I0AUT 5j101 SJBMYO0S - SO EES JUNomy
06TZ69 #
05'/€ 610T/FT/90 6T0Z/PT/90 6T0Z/AT/OC  6102/10/90 323D Ag Pled dTIIAD 259t our D palenbs g - 8p99T
SIEMPIOS - GOV EEST WUNOODY
T T £ SUCHTESUELL S310AUL sj10; sanddng s3I0 - 008 CES UNCIDY
619769 # weJBoid
L87TL 6102/12/90 6102/12/90 610Z/T2/90  6T0T/LT/S0 Ay Ag pled ITIIAD  NYHLNOT 61-5 JBWRIND0ld Auna) sejBnog - /6621
806169 #
§2'% 6T0Z/£0/50 6102/£0/90 610T/£0/00  610T/ET/50 =YD Ag pled ATIIAD 619%5 Buireibug g selydolt Sopelony - ZET/
8¢L169 # JTIAYINCTEYD
99°/ST 6T0Z/TE/S0 6T0Z/TE/50 6I0Z/TE/G0  6T0T/4T/S0 ¥=YD Aq pred 30 NMOL Sa6¢Y OT1 suoIn[os [edipaly Padsieuy - 9660
seljddng 80140 ~ 008"££S JUNOODY
95" /1% {z SUOHDESURI| S0I0AU] S[EI0] SULIOHUL) ~ 8ZOTES WNoIay
TTAT6G #
(199 610T/£0/90 6T0Z//0/90 &T02//0/90  6I0Z/82/50 33D Aq prad 0E£000  SGZ6/LTNIYT UL QoslY - §B/S
TT6169 #
&€ -B102/£0/90 6T0Z//0/90 6T0Z//0/90  610Z/12/50 3oauD Aq pled QEE000  ETLLLPTNIET Jur QoslY - GB/S
TT6169 #
68 610Z/£0/90 6102//0/90 610Z//0/90 6102/%1/50 33U Aq pled 0EE000  Z89S5/5TNIH] QU QIS - G8/S
Ti6169 #
6Er 610Z/£0/90 6T0C/Z0/90 6T0Z/Z0/90  610Z/L0/S0 HRYD AQ pied 0EE000  SSOE/PINI Jur 038y - 5845
SULIoIUN ~ §T0'TES N0y
+a'8ETES € suanoesuel ] 0I0AUT S{elof [kQ 8 580 - £007TES UN0IDY
’ bHoze9 #
L ETAT 6102/12/90 6102/12/90 6102/12/90  6T0T/TE/S0 3D Ag pled 80E8  SBS6EST-SAD 2T ABsauy s19AlY - $T8E
862269 #
8§'EST 6T0Z41/50 610Z/41/90 6ICT/AHT/A0  610Z/62/%0 30D AQ pleg 0598401  Z9T857-0ESE JU[ AANOWOIY ANISY,C - 86TZT
¢L6T69 #
T T 6T0Z/£0/90 610T/£0/90 610T/£0/90 610T/ST/50 024D Aqg pred 80£8  £¢98¢61-S40 O ABsug siedd - $18¢
O 3 sen - E00°CES N0y
09°£6%'T$ T SuogoBSURI] 3DI0AUT sjez0 | psuzdxg BupAlay - 26T QTS 1UN0DY
. 69168 #
09°£6b°T 6T0L/1E/50 610Z/TE/50 6T0Z/1E/50  6T0Z/80/50 2D Ag pred FTIAD 981681 ouey Apug - EpbET
asuadxg BuppAooy - 86T 0TS WNOIoY
TS T SUOIDeSURE ] SN0ALT sie10] wswdinby sase9 g SUSY - 9ET 0TS JUN0DY
TrLC69 #
Tr 6102/12/90 6T0Z/12/90 6T0Z/1Z/90  6T102/10/90 3243 Aq pred Z6E69/91 112y£/9505 UL ¥SN Yooy - £9/%
wewdinhg sesean § S1USY - 9ET 0TS 1UN0DTY
uonuIes g leay - 76 Juauipedag
u2g g YieaH 3jjiapsupies - TTg pund
JUNOWY 93ICAUT | 23B(] IUSUAB] 91B(] PoAisosYy 318 1/9 91BN 9B =MJICAUT  UOSERY PI@H SMes UoRdLIDSS] eDI0AUT "Qf 2CI0AUT

6T/52/90 - 61/1£/50 2buey 9. wswAied

Hoday uonnquisiq 1/ Aq ajqeAed sjunoddy

TORUBH,




Gardnerville Town Board m

Gardnerville
AGENDA ACTION SHEET g Nevada

1. For Possible Action: Discussion on and direction to Staff to work with Douglas
County regarding the 2019 Master Plan as it pertains to the Minden/Gardnerville
Community Plan and the proposed revisions of the Master Plan mapping and
future processes for the update. Appearance by Tom Dallaire, Director of
Community Development, Douglas County.

2. Recommended Motion: Direct Staff to work with Douglas County regarding the
2019 Master Plan as it pertains to the Minden/Gardnerville Community Plan.

Funds Available: ” Yes “ N/A

3. Department: Administration

4. Prepared by: Erik Nilssen, P.E., Town Manager

5. Meeting Date: July 2, 2019

6. Agenda: I Consent ¥ Administrative

Background Information: In 2016 a proposed update to the Douglas County Master Plan
went through a rigorous process, and was approved by the Douglas County Planning
Commission. The update was not successful in getting approved by the Douglas County Board
of County Commissioners. In order to improve the update’s chance at approval a new process
will be attempted which will update the Master Plan Maps, and then at a later date the text.
This update will modify the community plan area to align better with the public service

boundaries with sewer and water services, and align with the approved Town of Gardnerville
Plan for Prosperity proposed boundaries.

7. Other Agency Review of Action: “Douglas County T N/A
8. Board Action:

T Approved
I Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

71

#

Agenda Item #4




Nicholson, Marie

W

To: Dallaire, Tom

Subject: FW: Emailing: Gardnervifle_Current_ReceivingArea_11x17P,
Gardnerville_Proposed_ReceivingArea_11x17P

Attachments: Gardnerville_Current_ReceivingArea_11x17P.pdf; Gardnerville_Proposed_ReceivingArea_
T1xX17P.pdf

The info on the maps

We cleaned up the receiving area. Current acres = 469
Proposed acres =348

Removed the Hussman Ranch from the town community plan area and added the area to the Alderman Canal.
(-347 ac) (+781.1 ac) Godecke, Peri, Curtis, and others.

David Park receiving area from topaz is being proposed to be relocated to the area north of Toler and around Muller
Parkway (1044 ac) and of that 234 acres are within Gardnerville per the MOU with Minden on the Zerolane road being
the boundary between Minden and Gardnerville. Assumed to continue along the section fane per the MOU. This will
change in the future as Zerolene is constructed easterly.

Additionaily, the development agreement with Park ranch holdings in online now and proposed a cap on the receiving
area of 2500 units. Not the 16 units total per acre everyone assumes.

The community boundary are current is 1822 acres The proposed boundary is 2603 acres.
| will discuss the plan for prosperity and valley vision and Muller Parkway, needs at the meeting.
Thank you for your patience with this.

Tom Dailaire.




ITTTTYT

=

R

N
S

0 | NN 027 e e T W G e | B = T S
(ov Bgb~) ealy Buineosy

Aemied J3|n|y pasodold

Auunwiwog s|nisupies usung

™~

N
N
.-

[enuapisax Aie-iHnin |

| lequapisay Alwes sibuls |

sepoed Aunuiwop | seleis3 Awesebus [

JUSLINg = Baly MIUNWWOo? sfjIAISUpIES) U} Ul 35 PUET T

erIswILOD |

|eRuapISaY |einy |

oy

T

=

Lo
a.a.»&zzv

Sk

5
s,

T

IENERNE RN PN N
T

QP

1
L LT

LI TITIED

317 _l_._.lbm&i.m Nra-d.

R




T~
~—
|

[

/

=i

7 TUTLLIT

Sl

sjus by

Kemied Je|njy pasodeld

(019

'asinog Jj0D) ‘sesly UDLBAISSUOD
‘peouisay peeq el) eoeds usdo
Baly

Auniwwo) ajjiaaupies) pasodold

(v pee~)
ealy Buinaoay maN pesodold

REEER SR ERIPAN SOV T ISESS S e R R

(ov ge~) eary Bumeosy | |
[eanynouBy =

sepioed Aunuwoy |
[emsnpu|

N_ lequapisay Alwes-mnp | |

| lepuspisey Alwed apuis |
sajejsy Alwed s|buis | L

pasodold — ealy MIunwuio sjjiaaupies ay} ul asn pue T

|esawwo) |

|ejuspissy jeiny

o

'

A oo | | | | | il
> ‘
A
) 3
\ , | .@.m.,,%
i | 37 71A¥INGYE YD
U B4R \
S s
&
L=x
zﬁﬁ, H“m_r
Z g : 56
=\ g L %
- Py LoD 28| N 4
‘Iﬁl‘.. S anmnnrgy - foies
Pl =5 SRS % £ .m.efo i /
=] = Hmnﬁﬁ@4 ﬁ% AN %\
N Beiandet e N
Y E w rrrE:FE,,W. W //
] T ) %
= 5 2 )
- Eaisea 0 %8
= Hﬁﬁm St 4 gwnwo 2 B
HEH H T
m. mr+ AR s £ sy %, A fﬂ&
STE s napretth; 3 = 2 &N .
Fo axmpaetl
mHH_, i IO
HH | =
_u. ___.?: I ILE
3 A 3 e 7 s, |~
/ \\_M \\\\\ L2 5
1 \\\ P 7, 77 s S S,
/ / m:__::wuwm 7 L K\’
A/ & /
7 i
s /- \\\\\\ \\\\\




Gardnerville Town Board A

Gar dnervﬂ.le
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 5= Nevada

1. For Possible Action: Discussion and direction related to the proposed goals for Erik
Nilssen, Town Manager, for completion during his first year as the executive
director of the Town.

2. Recommended Motion: Approve the proposed goals for Erik Nilssen, Town
Manager, for completion during his first year as the executive director of the Town
based on the memo dated July 2, 2019 and Board Discussion.

Funds Available: ” Yes “ N/A

3. Department: Administration

4. Prepared by: Erik Nilssen, P.E., Town Manager

5. Meeting Date: July 2, 2019

6. Agenda: I Consent ¥ Administrative
Background Information: Erik Nilssen started as the Town Manager on May 18, 2019. In
order to provide clear direction on expectations for his first year as the executive director for
the Town, a list of proposed goals have been identified in the Memo to the Town Board dated

July 2, 2019. The Board may approve, reject, or modify the proposed goals at their discretion.

7. Other Agency Review of Action: " Douglas County M N/A

8. Board Action:

L Approved
™ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

EE

#

Agenda Item #5




_ ” |
m |
Gardnerville |

e Nevada |

MEMORANDUM

TO: Gardnerville Town Board
FROM: Erik Nilssen, P.E., Town Manager
DATE: July 2, 2019

SUBJECT: Town Manager Goals Through May 2020

I would like to thank the Town Board for suggesting that I place my ;
proposed goals for my first year on the agenda for Board discussion and

direction. One of the difficulties in listing my proposed goals is that it is

difficult to gage what I don’t know. There are certainly items which will

require my attention of which I am not currently aware. I expect numerous

items to manifest themselves over the course of the next year which will ;
cause my goals and priorities to shift. The areas I would like to focus my |
attention during the first year are: the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), The |
studies and actions outlined in the 2018 Plan for Properity, and

employee/management relations.

During my first month as Town Manager I met with each of you. One

common direction which emerged during these discussions was that no new

projects be started without completing existing projects. My first goal as

Town Manager is to complete the projects listed on this years CIP. These

projects include: (1) rapid flashing beacons on US 395, (2) Kingslane ‘
Sidewalk Improvements, (3) underground detention basins under the

Gardnerville Station, (4) Maple Street Storm Drain Improvements, (5)

electric charging station at the Gardnerville Station, (6) fog and slurry seals

on various Town Roads, and (7) Hellwinkle Shop Improvements.

The Plan for Prosperity was adopted in December of 2018 as the guiding
document for future development of the Town of Gardnerville. The plan lists
several studies and actions which should be completed between Fiscal Year
(FY) 2019/20 and FY 21/22. The Town has started the update to the Design

3~ 2.

1407 Highway 395 N., Gardnerville, NV 89410 | P:775.782.7134 | F:775.782.7135 | townofgardnerville.com




Town Manager Goals 2 Ry 2, 2019

Guidelines, however many of the additional studles and actions have not
been inititated. I have been assessing the needs for these studies and
meeting with stakeholders over my first month as Town Manager. I plan to
bring an agenda item to the August 6% Board Meeting to discuss these plans
and actions as well as additional plans I feel the Town may need to
undertake. I expect to provide details on how these plans and actions will
compliment a Town Policy on charitable donations which has been a recent
topic important to the Town.

Another area I believe needs Town Manager attention is
employee/management relations. I have a goal to establish solid
relationships with all Town Employees. This seems like an unquantifiable
goal, but in order to establish and maintain these relationships I propose to:
(1) attend weekly Health and Sanitation Staff Meetings (Monday 5:30 am)
and Public Works Staff Meetings (Monday 7:00 am), (2) meet individually
with every Town Employee to review their job descriptions versus the work
they are completing, discuss Town Operations and how to maximize morale,
satisfaction, and pride in working for the Town, (3) complete all performance
evaluations on time, and (4) hold biweekly staff meetings with the
Superintendent of Public Works, Administrative Services Manager and other
employees as necessary.

Over the last year the Town has been tardy on performance evaluations.
This has caused additional work for County Finance and Human Resources as
retroactive pay must be calculated and provided. The delay also causes
payroll complications when the merit increase is compounded with a cost of
living or other pay increases. Late performance appraisals are also unfair to
the employee as there is a general expectation of an opportunity for an
annual raise and need for feedback and clarity on work performance.

There are numerous additional goals which I have, however they are not as
quantifiable, and at this early stage In my understanding of Town operations,
I am not sure whether they are feasible. The other goals I would like to
explore inciude:

1) Increasing the annual funding for road reconstruction. The five year
CIP calls for the reconstruction of Douglas Avenue and Cemetery
Drive. These are important reconstructions, however there are
additional roads which must be reconstructed including Sunset
Subdivision, the industrial areas at the south end of Town, and work
must begin on a permanent solution to the Chichester cracks.

5-3




Town Manager Goals 3 July 2, 2019

2)

3)

I would like to set up a separate “road reserve” fund to earmark future
funds for road construction and maintenance. Possible ideas to supply
the road reserve fund include:

A) Setting aside the majority of any future property tax increase into
the road reserve fund.

B) Placing the retiring debt service funding into the road reserve fund.

C) Placing any previous year’s unspent funds directly into the road
reserve fund.

During the next budget cycle I would like to explore the possibility of
using a “Zero Based Budget” at least in the 921 Town Admin and 925
Parks and Recreation Funds. Much of governmental budgeting is
incremental, simply taking the previous year’s budget and adjusting at
the fringes. A zero based budget starts all funds at zero and ailocates
the funding on what you wish to accomplish.

Zero based budgeting has been a failure in larger municipalities as the
budgets are too complex. There are examples of it working in small
municipalities, freeing additional funds which could help fund the road
reserves fund. At this stage in my Town Management experience I am
not certain as to the time commitment and budgetary complexities to
make developing a zero based budget a goal, but it is something I
would like to explore further.

Make sure the Town is focusing on needs instead of wants. Just like a
family budget, the wants are more fun to obtain, but the needs must
come first. I believe the needs are in order: (1) maintaining the
infrastructure and facilities you have, (2) reconstructing and building
roads, (3) storm drain improvements, (4) park, facility, and landscape
improvements, Not all projects must be completed in this order.
Some wants can be purchased without all the needs being met;
however the majority of the budget should be devoted to the needs.

Over the next year I look forward to completing the three major tasks
identified above as well as working on other tasks proposed. I am anxious
to find out what I do not know about the Town and to have a better sense of
time commitments going into my next performance appraisal. During my
one-year evaluation, I will be better positioned to identify tasks for

s -




Town Manager Goals 4 Faly 2, 2019

completion during my second year managing the Town. I look forward to
your input on these goals.




Gardnerville Town Board m

Gar ”Hnerwlle
AGENDA ACTION SHEET g Nevada

1. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report of
activities for June 2019.

2. Recommended Motion: N/A
Funds Available: _ Yes ¥ N/A

3. Department: Administration

4. Prepared by: Carol Louthan, Administrative Services Manager
5. Meeting Date: July 2, 2019

6. Agenda: ™ Consent ¥ Administrative

Background Information: To be presented at meeting.

7. Other Agency Review of Action: I Douglas County MN/A
8. Board Action:

L Approved
™ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

(=

f—ﬁ

Agenda Item #6



Gardnerville Town Board /lf\\ o
Gardnerville
AGENDA ACTION SHEET o= Nevada

1. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Manager’s Monthly Report of
activities for June 2019

2. Recommended Motion: No action required.
Funds Available: _ Yes Z N/A

3. Department: Administration

4. Prepared by: Erik, Nilssen, P.E., Town Manager

5. Meeting Date:  July 2, 2019

6. Agenda: I Consent [ Administrative

Background Information: See attached.

7. Other Agency Review of Action: " Douglas County ¥ N/A
8. Board Action:

” Approved
™ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[

#
- e

Agenda Item #7



Gardnervill
e Nevada

Town Manager/Superintendent Monthly Report

Public Works & Parks — 6/2019

1. Held summer’s first Movie in the Park on June 21%. Debut of new sound system.
Mowed parking area near Heritage Park.
3. The flower baskets are up. A staff member is dedicated to watering 6.5 hours a day, 7
days a week.
4. 2 Seasonal employees started 6/24/2019. They will be focused on watering the flower
baskets along 395 and assisting Public Works staff with other tasks.
5. The Great Race came back to town this year with a local overnight stay.
a. The Town provided traffic control for the event on Waterloo at Lampe Park.
6. Carson Valley days parade came through town.
a. We did not install barricades at the French this year and it seems to go smoothly.
b. Trash and debris seemed to be minimal further reducing additional staffing.
7. 5 Staff were sent to Weed Warrior training for noxious weed identification and removal.
8. Gearing up for the 4 of July 5K Run/Walk event.
9. A mosquito barrier was applied at Heritage Park prior to the movie by Douglas County
mosquito abatement.
10. This is the month of vacations. Many staff were off throughout the month.

Health and Sanitation (H&S) — 6/2019

1. Town Sanitation Specialist open position.
A. One selected candidate had their offer for employment rescinded by Douglas
County Human Resources.
B. Need to review prior recruitment and make another offer or readvertise
position.
2. Started one new Town Sanitation Specialist on 6/10/2019

Office, Engineering, and Contracted Work —6/2019

1. Toured potential sites to be added to State of Nevada’s “filming database” with the
Carson Valley’s Visitor’s Authority. Unique locations in the Town which are proposed to

2=



be added to the database include: Hellwinkel Barns, Martin Slough Trail, Gardnerville
Station, Main Street Gardnerville, and Heritage Park.

Discussed refreshing the Town Manager’'s Welcome Video on the Town’s Website with
First Track Productions. Meeting to occur on July 9™ to discuss scope and fee.

Met with Granicus regarding new Town Board Agenda Software. The current software,
Agenda Free, will no longer be free and does not have some necessary capabilities.
Initial cost estimate is $3,300 annually for the software. Staff to follow up with
implementation.

Signed contract with Simerson Construction LLC for the installation of the Rapid
Charging Station at the Gardnerville Station. First plans submitted June 17" and review
comments provided to Simerson.

Organized and attended the Town of Gardnerville Design Guidelines workshop with
Race Studios, the Town Board, the Planning Commission, County Staff, and members of
the public.

Attended Carson Valley Visitor's Authority and Main Street Gardnerville Board Meetings
to provide updates on Town projects and events.

Met with UNR Business Environmental Program Representatives to discuss free
environmental permitting assistance available to the Town and Town Businesses.
Carson Creature Catchers installed pigeon deterrents at the Gardnerville Station.




Gardnerville Town Board (}\
a
AGENDA ACTION SHEET

rdne

BTy

I e
Nevada

1. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Board members activities and liaison
committee reports including but not limited to; Carson Valley Arts Council,
Nevada League of Cities, and Main Street Gardnerville.

2. Recommended Motion: N/A
Funds Available: __ Yes “ N/A
3. Department: Administration
4. Prepared by: Carol Louthan, Administrative Services Manager
5. Meeting Date: July 2, 2019
6. Agenda: " Consent [ Administrative
Background Information: To be presented at meeting.
7. Other Agency Review of Action: [ Douglas County M N/A
8. Board Action:

” Approved
" Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

M1

Agenda Item #8



1407 US Highway 395 North

\ MAIN]STREET
ervi]le Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
TN T N EvAD A B e B e 2 e

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MONTHLY STATUS REPORT
June 18, 2019 5:30 PM

This report provides a brief overview of operations of Main Street Gardnerville program.
MONTHLY SUMMARY
» Financial
o We have cut a check for $23,460.00 to close out our USDA Revolving Loan Fund.
o All future loans will be referred to the Rural Nevada Development Corporation,
brochures are available in the office.
¢ Membership
o 40 Members have renewed
o 8 New Members
o Members not renewing (Motion Spine & Sport, Laurel Hill, Full Circle, Sunflowers &
Sage, Simply Stella, and Ala Carte Salon)
e Social Media
o Twitter: 560 to 560 followers; increase of o follower(s)
o Facebook: 3,881 to 3,930 followers; increase of 49 follower(s)
o Instagram: 789 to 816 followers; increase of 27 follower(s)
o Alignable: 59 to 59 followers: increase of 0 follower(s)
¢ Website & Database
o Website has had 604 visitors May 15-June 13
o We are averaging about 600 visits to the website every month since the new site went
live in March
o Whbsite Report attached
o Currently building and setting up database (Maestro)

e Square Space Marketing E- Mails Open Rate Click Rate
o Biz Blast May 26% 2%
o Run for the Wreath-Freedom 5k 44% 2%
o Wine Walk Poll 42% 10%

e Media

o Remembering the Ritchford-Record Courier- June 1, 2019
Events and Happenings-Carson Now- May 31, 2019
Letters to the Editor (Hanging Baskets)-Record Courier-May 30, 2019
Events and Happenings-Carson Now- May 31, 2019
Gardneville Giving in July includes July 4 fun run/walk- KOLO8- May 29,
2019
o Fischer remarkable young person-Record Courier-May 23, 2019
o Letters to the Editor (Erik Nilssen)-Record Courier-May 16, 2019
o]
¢ Qulireach

0 0 00

o Bellator Firearms Training o DST Coffee

o Fabric Chicks o Historian

o Carson Valley Art Center o Greater NV Credit Union
o Main Street Baking Co o Wise Buys

OLD BUSINESS
o  Spoke to the SBDC/USDA Rural Tour at Bently Heritage on 5/14/19

» Annual CDBG Grant workshop in Carson City 5/22/19
s  Made online presentation to Winnemucca Main Street Coalition 6/7/19

mainstreetgardnerville.org 5:'“ r A info@mainstreetgardnerville.org
Main Street Gardnerville is a 501 ¢ 3 nonprofit corporation & an equal opportunity provider and employer.

33



) | MAIN I STREE'.I‘

1407 US Highway 395 North
Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
T. 775.782.8027 | F. 775.782.7135

NEW BUSINESS

Made presentation to Leadership DC 6/18/19

Annual CDBG Grant workshop in Carson City 5/22/19

2019 NMSC Accreditation will be presented at Chamber Luncheon tomorrow
501 C 6 has been officially dissolved and reported to the Secretary of State

MARK YOUR CALENDARS-

JUNE 19 CHAMBER LUNCHEON AT 11:45AM-1PM AT CARSON VALLEY INN
JUNE 20 THIRD THURSDAY WINE WALK

JULY 4 FREEDOM 5K FUN RUN

JULY 16 MSG BOARD MEETING

JULY 19 THIRD THURSDAY WINE WALK

AUGUST 15 THIRD THURSDAY WINE WALK

AUGUST 15 WINE DOWN DESSERTS AT HPG

AUGUST 20 MSG BOARD MEETING

AUGUST 22 VOLUNTEER EXPO

mainstreetgardnerville.org 8 i 5 info@mainstreetgardnerville.org

Main Street Gardnerville is a 501 ¢ 3 nonprofit corporation & an equal opportunity provider and employer.

34



